
CARROLL COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
**Small Courtroom, Courthouse** 

         January 4, 2024   9:30 a.m.  
 ***PLEASE SILENCE CELL PHONES*** 

Call to Order 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Public Comments 

Consent Agenda  
1. Approval of the December 20th and December 21st Meetings Minutes
2. Approval of Bills Paid in Vacation
3. Approval of Committee on Claims

Tabled Items 

Department Reports 
Animal Control 
Assessor 
Circuit Clerk 
County Clerk & Recorder 
Emergency Management 
GIS 
Highway 

1. Monthly Report
2. Approval of Carroll County’s Quality Based Selection Process for Consultants
when utilizing Federal Funds

Health Department 
Probation 
Sheriff 
States Attorney 
Transit 
Treasurer 
Zoning 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Affiliate Reports 
Blackhawk Hills Regional Council – Mrs. Bickelhaupt 
Business Employment Skills Team/Workforce – Mr. Flikkema 

1. Monthly Report
Community Mental Health Board – Mrs. Bickelhaupt 
Emergency Telephone System Board – Mr. Rieck 
Health Board – Mr. Iske 



Hotel/Motel – Ms. Jacobs 
 1. Monthly Report 
Jo/Carroll Enterprise Zone  
Jo Daviess Carroll County Joint Action Solid Waste Agency – Mr. Flikkema 
LRA – Ms. Jacobs 
 1. Monthly Report 
NWILED 
Senior Services Board – Mr. Vandermyde 
Tri-County Opportunities Council – Mr.  Preston  
United County Council of Illinois – Mr. Payette 
Veterans Assistance Commission – Ms. Jacobs 
 1. Monthly Report 
Whiteside Carroll Enterprise Zone - Mr. Payette 
 

Committee Report 
 Ad Hoc Inmate Housing Committee– Mr. Iske  
   
Old Business 
  
New Business 
 1.  Approval of Resolution Declaring a Vacancy in County Board District 1 
 2.  Create and Approve the County Administrator Ad Hoc Hiring Committee 

3.  Approval of the Mississippi Flyway Chapter Waterfowl USA Raffle License – 
Sportsman Banquet 
4.  Approval of the Mississippi Flyway Chapter Waterfowl USA Raffle License – Queen 
of Hearts Renewal 

 
Chairman Report 

Appointments 
  1.  Approve the Appointment of Susan Jacobs to NWILED 

2.  Approve the Appointment of Chris Flikkema as Highway Remodel Project Board 
Liaison 

    
Executive Session- 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(11) Pending Litigation 

Adjournment  

Next County Board Meeting – January 18, 2024 9:30 a.m. 



Carroll County Special Board Meeting 

Carroll County Highway Department, 10735 Mill Rd., Mt. Carroll, IL 

Wednesday, December 20, 2023 at 4 p.m. 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Payette at 4:02 p.m. 

Roll call shows board members, Mr. Payette, Mr. Flikkema, Ms. Jacobs, Mr. Iske and Mrs. Bickelhaupt 
present.  Also in attendance was State’s Attorney Kaney, Sheriff Kloepping, County Administrator Doty, 
Emergency Director Klinefelter, County Engineer Renkes, Animal Control Officer Ashby, 911 Coordinator 
Magill and David Soldat. 

Chair Payette presented from the agenda the discussion and possible action regarding Carroll County 
Emergency Operations Center/Multi-Purpose Area/Highway Department Building and Renovations.  

County Engineer Renkes, Emergency Director Klinefelter and ACO Ashby presented for discussion on 
procedures and changes for the remodeling of the Highway Department and Emergency Operations 
Center/Multi-Purpose Area.  Director Klinefelter advised the that the notice has been submitted to the 
local newspaper.  It was reiterated that on January 3, 2024 at 10:30 a.m.  there will be a mandatory 
meeting for interested contractors where questions can be answered by the specific building office 
supervisors (Highway, Animal Control and EOC/Multi-Purpose Areas).  During the discussion it was 
commented that all anticipated work would be the responsibility of the contractor.  There would be no 
work to be performed outside of the control of the contractor during this remodel. In addition, County 
Engineer Renkes would be the contact for work related questions regarding the upstairs and Director 
Klinefelter for the downstairs.  All interested contractors have until January 23, 2024 at 4 p.m. to submit 
bids.  A motion by Mr. Iske, second by Mrs. Bickelhaupt to include a completion date for all work by 
September 31, 2024.  Motion carried.  

Motion by Mrs. Bickelhaupt, second by Mr. Iske to adjourn at 5:37 p.m. 

Submitted by Amy R. Buss, County Clerk and Recorder  



CARROLL COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

301 N. MAIN ST., MT. CARROLL, IL IN SMALL COURTROOM 

DECEMBER 21, 2023  AT 9:30 A.M. 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Payette at 9:30 a.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Roll call shows Mr. Payette, Mr. Preston, Mr. Flikkema, Ms. Jacobs, Mr. Iske, Mrs. Bickelhaupt 
and Mr. Rieck present.  Mr. Vandermyde was absent.  

Public Comments – None 

Chair Payette presented the consent agenda: 
1. Approval of the December 21st  Meeting Minutes
2. Approval of Bills Paid in Vacation
3. Approval of Committee on Claims
4. Approval of Board Member Services

Motion by Mr. Preston, second by Ms. Jacobs to approve the consent agenda. Roll call shows 
Mr. Iske, Mr. Preston, Mr. Payette, Ms. Jacobs, Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. Flikkema and Mr. Rieck all 
voting aye.  Motion carried. 

Chair Payette moved up No. 2 under Appointments, Approval of County Board Vice Chair 
position.  Mr. Flikkema nominated Mr. Iske to be appointed Vice Chair, second by Ms. Jacobs. 
Motion carried. 

Tabled Items-None 

Animal Control-No report 

Assessor- Chief Assessor Annette Gruhn reported that around 5,000 notices were sent out, 
published and, at this time, waiting for approval from the Illinois Department of Revenue.  The 
phones are very active with question of people’s assessments.  The office is also busy getting 
ready to send out the Senior Freeze paperwork before postage goes up.  

Circuit Clerk- Circuit Clerk Patty Hiher reported that she is busy getting the information to the 
Auditor for the yearly audit.  

County Clerk- County Clerk Amy Buss presented her semi-annual report to be approved.  
Motion by Mr. Preston, second by Mr. Flikkema to approve.  Motion carried. 

Ms. Buss presented the winning design for the 2024 I Voted sticker contest.  The winner is 
Kennedy Livengood from the Chadwick Milledgeville School District.   



 

Emergency Management- Chair Payette informed that the Special Board Meeting on December 
20, 2023 went well, and many questions and concerns were addressed.  

Jim Klinefelter reminded the Board that the walk thru with contractors for the Emergency 
Management Command Center will be January 3, 2024 and bid opening will be on January 23, 
2024. 

GIS- No report. 

Highway –No report 

County Engineer Sara Renkes reported that she took a class for Safety Inspection of In-Service 
Bridges for Professional Engineers and passed.   

Chair Payette congratulated Sara on a job well done getting the new salt shed up in a timely 
manner.  

Health Department – No report. 

Probation- No report. 

Sheriff & Property-Sheriff Ryan Kloepping presented for Approval to fill vacant dispatch 
position.  Motion by Mr. Flikkema, second by Ms. Jacobs to approve to fill vacant dispatch 
position.  Motin carried. 

Sheriff Kloepping presented for Approval to fill two new correctional officer positions. Sheriff 
Kloepping addressed the Board that since at this time it is unknown what Wold will recommend 
with the jail study, that these positions can be crossed trained.  Motion by Mr. Preston, second 
by Ms. Jacobs to approve filling the two vacant positions for correctional officers.  Motion 
carried. 

Sheriff Kloepping presented for Approval of semi-annual report.  Motion by Mr. Rieck, second 
by Mr. Iske to approve semi-annual report.  Motion carried. 

911 Director Matt Magill informed the Board of grants available for NextGen 911.  He is 
working on the grant application at this time. It will be awarded in June 2024.  It was explained 
by County Administrator Mike Doty and 911 Director Matt Magill how NextGen 911 will help 
with updating our current GIS mapping information.  This new software update would also be 
very useful to the County Highway Department in regards to GIS mapping.  

State’s Attorney -State’s Attorney Aaron Kaney updated the Board he is still taking applications 
for Victims Advocate Witness Coordinator.  The current coordinator was to retire on December 
1, 2023, but has agreed to stay on until a replacement is found. 

Transit-No report 



Treasurer- Treasurer Lydia Hutchcraft presented for Approval to hire two Deputy Treasurer 
positions. She is asking for the newly created position to be filled, and she will need to fill 
another vacancy due to her current payroll clerk giving her notice.  Motion by Ms. Jacobs, 
second by Mr. Iske to approve the two hires.  Motion carried. 

Chair Payette wished Lydia a Happy 40th Birthday.  

Zoning- No report. 

Zoning Board of Appeals – No report 

 

Affiliate Reports 

Blackhawk Hills Regional Council – No report 

Business Employment Skills Team/Workforce – No report    

Community Mental Health Board – No report 

Emergency Telephone System Board - No report 

Health Board – No report 

Hotel/Motel – Ms. Jacobs reported that the Hotel/Motel Board is thinking of ways to rebrand 
itself.  

Jo/Carroll Enterprise Zone - No Report 

Jo Daviess Carroll County Joint Action Solid Waste Agency - No report 

LRA- No report.  

NWILED- No report.  

Senior Services Board - No report 

Tri-County Opportunities Council – No report  

United County Council of Illinois – No report.  

Veterans Assistance Commission – Ms. Jacobs announced that the Veteran’s Commission will 
be conducting a raffle in the near future.  

Whiteside Carroll Enterprise Zone – No report.  

Chair Payette reminded Board members that even if they are unable to attend their affiliate 
committee meetings, to still obtain the agendas and minutes to file in the County Clerk’s office 
and to include them in the Board packet to keep other board members and the public 
informed.   



Ad Hoc Inmate Housing Committee- A monthly report was included in the Board packet.  

Mr. Iske reported that Wold Architecture Firm was at the Courthouse over a two-day period.  At 
that time,  they interviewed the departments that work with the judicial and County jail. 

Wold praised our low process times for inmates and also informed the committee of some in 
antiquate process/tools that could be enhanced with technology improvements. 

Sheriff Kloepping reported that Wold was able to take another more in-depth tour of the jail.   

Old Business 

Chair Payette updated the Board that the position for County Administrator has been 
advertised.  No resumes have been received yet. 

He will have a committee formed by the next Board meeting.  He is encouraging all Board 
members and Department heads to have input on what we are looking for in our next County 
Administrator. 

County Administrator Doty informed the Board that resumes will be accepted up to January 19, 
2024. 

Chair Payette presented for Approval of the creation of a Transit PCOM position.  He 
recommend a 30-hour work week position, salary of $39,000 with IMRF and Health Insurance 
benefits.  He based the hours on what County Administrator Doty provided to complete all 
transit grant business.   

Chair Payette informed the Board that the State has agreed to let Mary Maszke from Carroll 
County Transit sign grant papers but only for 45 days.  After the 45 days, he would be 
responsible for signing grant paperwork.  

County Administrator Doty explained at the last Board meeting the job description for the 
Transit PCOM.  He also explained how this would be funded by the Fund 74 Transportation 
grant not the general fund.  

County Board Member Mrs. Bickelhaupt made a motion to approve the PCOM position at 
$39,000 salary, 30-hour work week, IMRF and Health Insurance, second by Ms. Jacobs. 
Discussion. Director Deb Connor from the Caroll County Senior Service asked how the grant can 
cover health insurance for the PCOM when it is not offered to any Transit employee.  She also 
wanted to know how the hourly rate of $25 which adds to $39,000 was determined.  Chair 
Payette responded that any County employee must be offered health insurance if working 30 
hours or more.  In regards to the $25 hourly rate, he based that on what JoDaviess is giving 
their full time PCOM.  Mary Maszke, Carroll County Transit Grants Manager, voiced concerns 
with using the Transportation grant and how this would further their short fall of funds.  Roll 
call shows Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. Preston, Mr. Payette, Mr. Rieck, Mr. Iske, Mr. Flikkema and 
Ms. Jacobs all voting aye.  Motion carried.  



Chair Payette presented for Approval of amendments to Chapter 60 Personnel Code.  State’s 
Attorney Kaney explained the amendments to three sections, 60-1-1.3-2 Categories of 
Employees, 60-1-4-.2 Vacation/Paid Leave and 60-1-4-.4 Excused Absences.  Motion by Ms. 
Jacobs to approve amendments to Chapter 60 as presented, second by Mrs. Bickelhaupt. Roll 
call shows Mr. Preston, Mr. Payette, Mr. Iske, Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. Rieck, Mr. Flikkema and 
Ms. Jacobs all voting aye.  

Chair Payette informed the Board there will be more changes to Chapter 60 Personnel Code in 
the future. 

New Business 

Chair Payette presented Acceptance of a conditional offer of employment for the Director of 
Zoning Position.  The Director of Zoning position has been offered to Jaciee Buckner.  The yearly 
salary for fiscal year 2023-24 will be $48,925, County Health Insurance, IMRF, all County 
approved holidays and vacation per County policy.  The Conditions of this employment offer 
are:  

1. Approval of this conditional offer by the County Board 
2. Background check 
3. Completion of six-month probationary period. 

Motion by Mr. Preston, second by Ms. Jacobs to approve.  Roll call shows Ms. Jacobs, Mr. Iske, 
Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. Rieck, Mr. Flikkema, Mr. Payette and Mr. Preston all voting aye.  Motion 
carried. 

Chair Payette presented for discussion and possible direction on West Carroll Administrative 
Building. Motion by Ms. Jacobs, second by Mrs. Bickelhaupt not to pursue the purchase of the 
West Carroll Administrative building until the Wold Jail study is completed.  Discussion. Roll call 
shows Mr. Payette, Mr. Rieck, Ms. Jacobs, Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. Iske voting aye, Mr. Flikkema 
and Mr. Preston voting nay.  Motion carried.   

Chair Payette will draft a letter to be sent to the West Carroll School District informing them 
that at this time the County is not going to proceed on the possible purchase of the 
administrative building.   

Chairman Reports- Chair Payette informed the he signed the engagement letter from WIPFLI 
for the Circuit Clerk’s Audit.  

Appointments 

Chair Payette withdrew the Appointment of David Soldat to fill District 1 County Board Seat 
vacated by John Grotto.  There are Statues that must be done to declare a vacancy. The 
appointment will probably be done in January but no later then February.  



Chair Payette presented for Appointment of Joseph Payette to Jo/Carroll Enterprise Zone and 
NWILED.  Motion by Mr. Preston, second by Mr. Flikkema to appoint Chair Payette to Jo/Carroll 
Enterprise Zone. The appointment to NWILED will be done at the next board meeting.  Motion 
carried. 

Chair Payette presented Gary Iben to be reappointed to ETSB for the term of December 2023 
thru December 2026.  Motion by Mr. Preston, second by Mr. Rieck to approve the 
appointment. 

Chair Payette informed that ESTB is looking to decrease the size of the board.   

Chair Payette asked the Board to please join him and County Administrator Doty in a photo. 
Chair Payette presented Mike Doty with a Certificate of Appreciation and a gift certificate to a 
local Italian restaurant in the area they are moving to.  He thanked Mike for his fifteen years of 
service as Carroll County’s first County Administrator.  

Chair Payette announced there will be a reception for Mike in the small conference room of the 
Courthouse immediately following the Board meeting. 

Executive Session-None 

Motion by Mr. Preston, second by Mr. Flikkema to adjourn at 10:43 a.m.  Motion carried. 

Submitted by Amy R. Buss, Couty Clerk and Recorder 

 



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  

Bank = 

Batch = CCFB

Due Date = 

Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

07 ELECTIONSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

12.22.23 12/22/2023 CO CLERK / ELECTION SCHOOL 2024

$100.00CARROLL CO. FARM BUREAU 01107005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG1580

$100.00Subtotal for Department: 07 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $100.00

Page 1 of 2Operator: janeadolph 12/22/2023 10:41:19 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)

Bills Paid In Vacation



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  

Bank =  

Batch = THOMAS DODGE

Due Date = 

Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 037 PUBLIC SAFETY

12.27.23 SQUAD CAR 12/27/2023 SHERIFF / NEW SQUAD CAR

$41,948.00THOMAS DODGE-CHRYSLER-JEEP 03700005303 PUBLIC SAFETY--SQUAD CAR640192

$41,948.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 037 : $41,948.00

Page 1 of 2Operator: janeadolph 12/27/2023 12:40:04 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  

Bank =  

Batch = POSTAGE

Due Date = 

Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

02 SUPPLIES AND RENTALSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

12.28.23 12/28/2023 21020656 - COUNTY TREASURER/CLERK

$673.87UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 01102005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG4576

$673.87Subtotal for Department: 02 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $2,673.87

Page 1 of 4Operator: janeadolph 12/28/2023 2:29:19 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

09 PERMANENT REGISTRATIONDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

12.28.23 12/28/2023 21020656 - COUNTY TREASURER/CLERK

$2,000.00UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 01109005329 PERMANENT REGISTRATION4576

$2,000.00Subtotal for Department: 09 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $2,673.87

Page 2 of 4Operator: janeadolph 12/28/2023 2:29:19 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 023 COUNTY RECORDER FEES

2024 WINTER CONFERENCE 12/28/2023 CO CLERK

$170.00IACCR 02300005160 EDUCATION2156

$170.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 023 : $170.00

Page 3 of 4Operator: janeadolph 12/28/2023 2:29:19 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  

Bank =  

Batch = BECK NOTARY

Due Date = 

Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

20 COUNTY SHERRIFFDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

202300127 12/29/2023 KLARISSA BECK NOTARY

$59.88CLARK CARROLL INSURANCE AGENCY 01120005323 OFFICE SUPPLIES2255

202300127 12/29/2023 KLARISSA BECK NOTARY

$15.00SECRETARY OF STATE 01120005323 OFFICE SUPPLIES3894

$74.88Subtotal for Department: 20 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $74.88

Page 1 of 2Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 9:13:05 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  

Bank = 

Batch = 

Due Date = 1/4/2024

Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

01 COURTHOUSE UPKEEPDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

0721-007828842 1/4/2024 SHERIFF

$210.25REPUBLIC SERVICES 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE640762

SN022004 1/4/2024 CARROLL COUNTY

$337.48SYNDEO NETWORKS, INC. 01101005005 UTILITIES--TELEPHONE640697

780479267 1/4/2024 SHERIFF

$87.90THE HOME DEPOT PRO 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE640379

780035218 1/4/2024 SHERIFF

$459.38THE HOME DEPOT PRO 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE640379

780268645 1/4/2024 SHERIFF

$64.80THE HOME DEPOT PRO 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE640379

780035226 1/4/2024 SHERIFF

$52.67THE HOME DEPOT PRO 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE640379

$1,212.48Subtotal for Department: 01 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $35,735.77

Page 1 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)

Committee on Claims



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

02 SUPPLIES AND RENTALSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

1461400_12.14.23 1/4/2024 CARROLL COUNTY / BEMIS

$55.00PHYSICIANS IMMEDIATE CARE 01102005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG640339

$55.00Subtotal for Department: 02 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $35,735.77

Page 2 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

03 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

INV599404 1/4/2024 CIRCUIT CLERK

$143.78STERLING BUSINESS EQUIP. CENT. 01103005025 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN4192

$143.78Subtotal for Department: 03 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $35,735.77

Page 3 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

05 SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

3106417970 1/4/2024 ASSESSOR

$169.29PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SERV 01105005323 PRINTING SUPPLIES & OTHERS640586

$169.29Subtotal for Department: 05 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $35,735.77

Page 4 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

06 BOARD OF REVIEWDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

128897270_1.4.24 1/4/2024 BOARD OF REVIEW

$1,200.00UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 01106005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG4576

$1,200.00Subtotal for Department: 06 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $35,735.77

Page 5 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

07 ELECTIONSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

6184 1/4/2024 SOFTWARE LICENSES

$2,843.96LIBERTY SYSTEMS, LLC 01107005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG640393

$2,843.96Subtotal for Department: 07 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $35,735.77

Page 6 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

10 ACCOUNTING SERVICES & AUDITDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

2386459 1/4/2024 AUDIT

$7,750.00WIPFLI 01110005023 ACCOUNTING SERVICE & AUDIT2630

$7,750.00Subtotal for Department: 10 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $35,735.77

Page 7 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

12 COUNTY TREASURERDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

11.30.23 TREAS 1/4/2024 TREASURER

$224.00MIRROR DEMOCRAT 01112005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES2960

12.15.23 TREASURER 1/4/2024 TREASURER

$22.95PEARSON 01112005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES3565

$246.95Subtotal for Department: 12 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $35,735.77

Page 8 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

13 COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDERDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

2024 CO CLERK SUBSCRIP 1/4/2024 CO CLERK

$40.00MIRROR DEMOCRAT 01113005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES2960

12.18.23 1/4/2024 CO CLERK / DEPOSIT TICKETS

$89.39TBK BANK 01113005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES640417

$129.39Subtotal for Department: 13 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $35,735.77

Page 9 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

20 COUNTY SHERRIFFDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

VN5105974256 1/4/2024 SHERIFF

$22.20ILLINOIS TOLLWAY 01120005012 TRAVEL640809

15776999 1/4/2024 SHERIFF

$206.49LEAF 01120005323 OFFICE SUPPLIES2614

12.21.2023 1/4/2024 JAIL

$20,565.19SHAW'S FOODS 01120006073 DIETING OF PRISONERS3929

115100 1/4/2024 SHERIFF

$570.00UNIFORM DEN, INC. 01120006046 UNIFORMS4510

114054-02 1/4/2024 SHERIFF

$83.42UNIFORM DEN, INC. 01120006046 UNIFORMS4510

$21,447.30Subtotal for Department: 20 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $35,735.77

Page 10 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

26 STATES ATTORNEYDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

IN2303849 1/4/2024 STATES ATTY

$40.48CLINTON COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFF. 01126005341 OTHER EXPENDITURES            940

$40.48Subtotal for Department: 26 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $35,735.77

Page 11 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

27 CIRCUIT CLERKDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

3106417675 1/4/2024 CIRCUIT CLERK

$217.14PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SERV 01127005327 POSTAGE640586

$217.14Subtotal for Department: 27 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $35,735.77

Page 12 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

39 HLTH INS ADMIN & SELF INS COSTDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

JANUARY 2024 1/4/2024 ADMIN FEE

$280.00PACT ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES CORP 01139006025 HEALTH INS ADMINISTRATIVE FE3276

$280.00Subtotal for Department: 39 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $35,735.77

Page 13 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 014 COUNTY HIGHWAY FUND

CLAIM 4350-C 1/4/2024 GRADER HITCH

$3,500.00BONNELL INDUSTRIES INC 01400005102 EQUIPMENT PURCHASES435

CLAIM 4350-C 1/4/2024 HWY SALT

$36,770.99CARGILL, INCORPORATED 01400005101 MAINTENANCE OF COUNTY HIG675

 4350-C 1/4/2024 HWY SALT

$720.98CARGILL, INCORPORATED 01400005112 REIMBURSEMENTS675

CLAIM 4350-C 1/4/2024 REPAIRS

$21,718.05E.D. ETNYRE & CO. 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN1530

CLAIM 4350-C 1/4/2024 SHOP SUPPLIES

$139.80FASTENAL COMPANY 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE1568

CLAIM 4350-C 1/4/2024 LIGHTS

$294.04HELM TRUCK AND EQUIPMENT 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN640534

CLAIM 4350-C 1/4/2024 WINTER WEAR 2023

$315.63JOHN MOSHURE 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE3054

 CLAIM 4350-C 1/4/2024 SHOP SUPPLIES

$393.52KIMBALL MIDWEST 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE2459

CLAIM 4350-C 1/4/2024 PARTS

$98.43KIMBALL MIDWEST 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN2459

CLAIM 4350-C 1/4/2024 STEERING DAMPER

$199.20KUNES' COUNTRY AUTO GROUP INC 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN2491

JANUARY 2024 1/4/2024 ADMIN FEE

$48.00PACT ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES CORP 01400006025 HEALTH INS ADMINISTRATIVE FE3276

CLAIM 4350-C 1/4/2024 REIMBURSE BRIDGE INSPECTION CLASS

$80.02SARA RENKES 01400005106 ENGINEERING FEES640811

Page 14 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

CLAIM 4350-C 1/4/2024 CO ENG CELLPHONE

$168.69U.S. CELLULAR 01400005109 ADMINISTRATIVE4577

 CLAIM 4350-C 1/4/2024 ACO CELLPHONE

$21.90U.S. CELLULAR 01400005112 REIMBURSEMENTS4577

$64,469.25Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 014 : $64,469.25

Page 15 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 015 TOWNSHIP MOTOR FUEL T

AX

7821-MT 1/4/2024 HWY SALT / SAVANNA

$722.92CARROLL COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT. 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS2040

7820-MT 1/4/2024 BRIDGE INPECTION ENGINEERING FEES

$300.00COUNTY BRIDGE FUND 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS500

$1,022.92Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 015 : $1,022.92

Page 16 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 023 COUNTY RECORDER FEES

0898169-IN 1/4/2024 CO CLERK / BASTION JAN-MARCH 2024

$2,650.00FIDLAR TECHNOLOGIES 02300005445 BASTION SYSTEM CLOUD BACK-1660

$2,650.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 023 : $2,650.00

Page 17 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 040 COUNTY MOTEL/HOTEL TA

X FUND

1000007220 1/4/2024 HOTEL/MOTEL

$90.25FLOWER FAN A SEE 04000005151 ADMINISTRATION1689

18078 1/4/2024 HOTEL/MOTEL

$2,400.00tdg COMMUNICATIONS 04000005154 TOURISM/PROMOTIONS40038

$2,490.25Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 040 : $2,490.25

Page 18 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 041 COUNTY 911 ETSB FUND

287318886106X12032023 1/4/2024 911

$1,560.70AT&T MOBILITY 04100005373 NETWORKING &TELEPHONE640659

304040318_1.16.24 1/4/2024 ETSB

$137.10BRIGHTSPEED 04100005373 NETWORKING &TELEPHONE640705

926561 1/4/2024 ETSB

$1,384.38DECKER SUPPLY CO INC 04100005192 EQUIPMENT & REPAIRS41040

INV595823 1/4/2024 911

$499.95STERLING BUSINESS MACHINES 04100005192 EQUIPMENT & REPAIRS41030

INV595824 1/4/2024 911

$300.00STERLING BUSINESS MACHINES 04100005192 EQUIPMENT & REPAIRS41030

$3,882.13Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 041 : $3,882.13

Page 19 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 054 COUNTY HEALTH FUND

1.4.24 REIMBURSE 1/4/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$146.07DAWN HOLLAND 05400005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG54000

 REIMBURSE 1.4.24 1/4/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$119.98DAWN HOLLAND 05400005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG54000

MILEAGE DEC 2023 1/4/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$43.49DAWN HOLLAND 05400005012 TRAVEL54000

56709 1/4/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$412.44EWERS GARAGE 05400005322 REPAIRS1540

UPPCT0000004478 1/4/2024 HEALHT DEPT

$200.00MITCHELL & MCCORMICK INC 05400005344 CONTRACTUAL640148

JANUARY 2024 1/4/2024 ADMIN FEE

$32.00PACT ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES CORP 05400006025 HEALTH INS ADMINISTRATIVE FE3276

DECEMBER 2023 1/4/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$260.00STEPHANIE S. HUGHES 05400005437 PART-TIME JANITOR640770

JANUARY 2024 1/4/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$2,043.40STEPHENSON COUNTY HEALTH DEPART. 05400005382 MANAGEMENT CONTRACT54018

DEC 2023 1/4/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$2,043.40STEPHENSON COUNTY HEALTH DEPART. 05400005382 MANAGEMENT CONTRACT54018

INV598361 1/4/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$112.16STERLING BUSINESS MACHINES 05400005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG54050

$5,412.94Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 054 : $5,412.94

Page 20 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 084 CORONA VIRUS RELIEF FU

ND

106399 1/4/2024 HWY DEPT

$17.00MARK SEED AND FEED 08400009208 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS - EXP640782

$17.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 084 : $17.00

Page 21 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

Fund Totals
Fund Fund TotalFund Name

011 $35,735.77GENERAL FUND

014 $64,469.25COUNTY HIGHWAY FUND

015 $1,022.92TOWNSHIP MOTOR FUEL 

023 $2,650.00COUNTY RECORDER FEES

040 $2,490.25COUNTY MOTEL/HOTEL T

041 $3,882.13COUNTY 911 ETSB FUND

054 $5,412.94COUNTY HEALTH FUND

084 $17.00CORONA VIRUS RELIEF F

$115,680.26Total:

Page 22 of 22Operator: janeadolph 12/29/2023 12:39:42 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



 December 27, 2023 

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT 
January 4th, 2024 

ORDINANCE SOFT COPY REVIEW 

Included with the minutes is the soft copy of the changes to the ordinances I would like to review with 
our States Attorney and then present to the board via resolution. In the interim, are there any concerns 
with the items included? 

QUALITY BASED SELECTION PROCESS FOR CONSULTANTS WITH FEDERAL FUNDS 

AGENDA ITEM 

1. Approval of Carroll County’s Quality Based Selection Process for Consultants when utilizing
Federal Funds.

In the process of establishing the Quality Based Selection (QBS) framework for Fremont Bridge design 
consultants, I've identified Carroll County's QBS Process in multiple locations. However, none of these 
documents, that I have been able to locate, are officially approved. Attached is the 2017 draft of the 
QBS Process, and I seek approval for its use. Once approved, it will be posted publicly on our County 
Highway Department website. This document supplements our existing Procurement Policy, specifically 
addressing the Highway Department’s procurement of design and construction consultants. 



Chapter 800 
COUNTY HIGHWAYS AND ROADS 

1 

Sec. 800-1 Weight Limits 

(a) This ordinance is enacted pursuant to a grant of authority set forth in 625 ILCS 5/15-316(c).

(b) No person shall operate or cause to allow to be operated any trucks or other commercial
vehicles having any axle load in excess of 20,000 pounds per axle or having a gross weight in
excess of 80,000 pounds on any county highway within the County of Carroll, State of Illinois,
except when the above limits will be reduced by separate resolu�ons of the Carroll County
Board. (625 ILCS 5/15-111 IS THE REFERENCE)

(c) Penal�es
Every person convicted of a viola�on of the provisions hereof shall, for a first or second
conviction be guilty of petty offense and, for a third or subsequent conviction within one year
after the first conviction – I DON’T KNOW WHY THIS IS ITALICIZED THE STATUTES REFERENCE 4
OFFENSES WITHIN A YEAR, be guilty of Class C Misdemeanor.

The following fines and bonds shall apply for weight over the allowable limit: (625 ILCS 5/15-113 
IS THE REFERENCE FOR THE NEW PRICES) 

Addi�onal Fees added when there is appearance in court. Persons charged with a viola�on of 
this Code shall post cash bail, I DON’T BELIEVE WE CAN IMPOSE CASH BAIL ANYMORE in the 
amount of the fine fixed by the Code plus costs. See above for amount of bond. 

Fine
Surcharge 

Leads
Clerk 
Fee

CO Bd. 
Resol.

Trauma 
Center CAF ISP Total

New Total 
by ILCS Difference

1,000 - 2,000 50.00$      20.00$     25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 115.00$    100.00$     (15.00)$      
2,001 - 2,500 125.00$    40.00$     25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 210.00$    270.00$     60.00$       
2,501 - 3,000 200.00$    50.00$     25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 295.00$    330.00$     35.00$       
3,001 - 3,500 275.00$    70.00$     25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 390.00$    520.00$     130.00$     
3,501 - 4,000 350.00$    90.00$     25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 485.00$    600.00$     115.00$     
4,001 - 4,500 425.00$    110.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 580.00$    850.00$     270.00$     
4,501 - 5,000 500.00$    130.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 675.00$    950.00$     275.00$     
5,001 - 5,500 575.00$    150.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 770.00$    1,500.00$  730.00$     
5,501 - 6,000 650.00$    170.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 865.00$    1,650.00$  785.00$     
6,001 - 6,500 725.00$    190.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 960.00$    1,800.00$  840.00$     
6,501 - 7,000 800.00$    200.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,045.00$ 1,950.00$  905.00$     
7,001 - 7,500 875.00$    220.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,140.00$ 2,100.00$  960.00$     
7,501 - 8,000 950.00$    240.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,235.00$ 2,250.00$  1,015.00$  
8,001 - 8,500 1,025.00$ 260.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,330.00$ 2,400.00$  1,070.00$  
8,501 - 9,000 1,100.00$ 280.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,425.00$ 2,550.00$  1,125.00$  
9,001 - 9,500 1,175.00$ 300.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,520.00$ 2,700.00$  1,180.00$  
9,501 - 10,000 1,250.00$ 320.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,615.00$ 2,850.00$  1,235.00$  

10,001 - 10,500 1,400.00$ 350.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,795.00$ 3,000.00$  1,205.00$  
10,501 - 11,000 1,550.00$ 390.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,985.00$ 3,150.00$  1,165.00$  
11,001 - 11,500 1,700.00$ 430.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 2,175.00$ 3,300.00$  1,125.00$  
11,501 - 12,000 1,850.00$ 470.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 2,365.00$ 3,450.00$  1,085.00$  
12,001 - 12,500 2,000.00$ 500.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 2,545.00$ 3,600.00$  1,055.00$  
12,501 - 13,000 2,150.00$ 540.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 2,735.00$ 3,750.00$  1,015.00$  
13,001 - 13,500 2,300.00$ 580.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 2,925.00$ 3,900.00$  975.00$     
13,501 - 14,000 2,450.00$ 620.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 3,115.00$ 4,050.00$  935.00$     
In Excess 14,000 2,500.00$ 630.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 3,175.00$ 4,200.00$  1,025.00$  

Lbs. Overweight



Chapter 800 
COUNTY HIGHWAYS AND ROADS 

2 
 

 
(d) The proceeds derived from the penal�es and fines collected under this Sec�on shall be remited 

to the Treasurer of the County of Carroll for deposit in the County Highway Fund. 
 
Sec. 800-2 Class III Truck Routes. 
 
The following routes are hereby designated as a Class III truck route, in accordance with the standards 
adopted by the State of Illinois for Class III truck route: 
 
 COUNTY HIGHWAY No. 4 (Benson Road) From Illinois Route 64 to Illinois Route 40 
 COUNTY HIGHWAY No. 8 (Ideal Road) From Illinois Route 78 to Argo Fay Road 
 COUNTY HIGHWAY No. 19 (Shannon Road) From Illinois Route 72 to Illinois Route 40 
 
The following size and weight limita�ons shall apply: 
 

o Width: 8 Feet, 6 Inches 
o Height: 13 Feet, 6 Inches 
o Length: Single Vehicle – 42 Feet 

• Semitrailer in a truck tractor – semitrailer combina�on – 53 feet (for semi-trailers longer than 48 
feet, the maximum kingpin to rear axle distance allowed is 40 feet). 

• Semitrailer and trailer in a truck tractor – semi-trailer – trailer (double botom) combina�ons – 
28 feet, 6 inches. 

• Overall length of a truck tractor – semitrailer combina�on – 55 feet. 
• Truck tractor – semitrailer – trailer (double botom combina�on) – 65 feet 
• All other combina�ons – 60 feet 
• Weight:  

o Single Axle – 20,000 pounds 
o Tandem Axle – 34,000 pounds 
o Gross Weight – 80,000 pounds (based on Federal Bridge Formula limita�ons). 

 
 
Sec. 800-3 Use of Roads During Temporary Adverse Condi�ons. 
 

(a) This Sec�on is enacted pursuant to grant authority set forth in 625 ILCS 5/15-316, and as 
amended herea�er. 

(b) The County Engineer may prohibit the opera�on of vehicles upon any County Road(s) or impose 
restric�ons as to weight of any vehicle(s) to be operated upon such County Road(s) for a total 
period not to exceed 90 days in any one calendar year, whenever, in the sound discre�on of such 
County Engineer, any such County Road9s) by reason of deteriora�on, rain, snow, or other 
climate condi�ons, will be seriously damaged or destroyed unless the use of vehicles thereon is 
prohibited or the permissible weight thereof reduced. 

(c) The County Engineer shall, during any period of restric�on hereunder, erect or cause to be 
erected and maintained, signs designa�ng the provisions of this Sec�on and restric�ons resul�ng 
there from, at each end of that por�on of any County Road affected thereby, and the restric�ons 
arising hereunder shall not be effec�ve unless and un�l, such signs are erected and maintained. 



Chapter 800 
COUNTY HIGHWAYS AND ROADS 

3 
 

(d) No person shall operate any vehicle or combina�on thereof, upon any County Road posted in 
accordance with Sec�on 800-3 hereof, when the weight of said vehicle is in excess of the 
following: 

a. 2-axle, single rear �res: Maximum Gross Weight 7,000 lbs. 
b. 2-axle, dual rear �res: Maximum Gross Weight 18,000 lbs. 
c. 3-axle, dual rear �res: Maximum Gross Weight 30,000 lbs. 
d. 4-axle, dual rear/trailer: Maximum Gross Weight 38,000 lbs. 
e. 5-axle, dual rear/trailer: Maximum Gross Weight 48,000 lbs. 
f. Any vehicle exempt from licensing and/or registra�on: 

i. Having �res inflated toa pressure exceeding 30 lbs. per square in, maximum 
weight per axle 5,000 lbs. 

ii. Having �res inflated to a pressure of 30 lbs. per square inch or less (herein 
defined as “Floata�on Tires”) maximum weight per axle, 7,000 lbs. 

g. Pick-up & 5th wheel trailer with dual rear �res, Maximum Gross Weight: 17,500 lbs. 
(e) The County Engineer may issue a special permit, at their discre�on, upon showing of good cause 

and taking into considera�on the condi�on of the par�cular roadways requested, in wri�ng, 
authorizing the applicant to use said county highways for a specific trip or series of trips, 
temporarily upon said county highways., However, the County Engineer may require security as 
may be deemed necessary to compensate for injury to said highway or road structure prior to 
gran�ng the permit. 

(f) Penal�es (or refer to Sec. 800-1 (C)) 



Chapter 800 
COUNTY HIGHWAYS AND ROADS 

4 
 

Every person convicted of a viola�on of the provisions hereof shall, for a first or second 
conviction be guilty of petty offense and, for a third or subsequent conviction within one year 
after the first conviction, be guilty of Class C Misdemeanor. 

 
The following fines and bonds shall apply for weight over the allowable limit: (625 ILCS 5/15-113) 
 
Addi�onal Fees added when there is appearance in court. Persons charged with a viola�on of this 
Code shall post cash bail in the amount of the fine fixed by the Code plus costs. See above for 
amount of bond. 

 
Sec. 800-4 Fees for Overweight and Over-dimension Permits. 
 
Be it resolved that the Carroll County Board hereby authorizes the collec�on of fees for overweight/over-
dimension permits issued by the Carroll County Highway Department in conjunc�on with 625 ILCS 5/15-
301 of the Illinois Vehicle Code General Provisions of the Permit Policy and the following atached fee 
schedule: 

Fine
Surcharge 

Leads
Clerk 
Fee

CO Bd. 
Resol.

Trauma 
Center CAF ISP Total

New Total 
by ILCS Difference

1,000 - 2,000 50.00$      20.00$     25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 115.00$    100.00$     (15.00)$      
2,001 - 2,500 125.00$    40.00$     25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 210.00$    270.00$     60.00$       
2,501 - 3,000 200.00$    50.00$     25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 295.00$    330.00$     35.00$       
3,001 - 3,500 275.00$    70.00$     25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 390.00$    520.00$     130.00$     
3,501 - 4,000 350.00$    90.00$     25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 485.00$    600.00$     115.00$     
4,001 - 4,500 425.00$    110.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 580.00$    850.00$     270.00$     
4,501 - 5,000 500.00$    130.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 675.00$    950.00$     275.00$     
5,001 - 5,500 575.00$    150.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 770.00$    1,500.00$  730.00$     
5,501 - 6,000 650.00$    170.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 865.00$    1,650.00$  785.00$     
6,001 - 6,500 725.00$    190.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 960.00$    1,800.00$  840.00$     
6,501 - 7,000 800.00$    200.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,045.00$ 1,950.00$  905.00$     
7,001 - 7,500 875.00$    220.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,140.00$ 2,100.00$  960.00$     
7,501 - 8,000 950.00$    240.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,235.00$ 2,250.00$  1,015.00$  
8,001 - 8,500 1,025.00$ 260.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,330.00$ 2,400.00$  1,070.00$  
8,501 - 9,000 1,100.00$ 280.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,425.00$ 2,550.00$  1,125.00$  
9,001 - 9,500 1,175.00$ 300.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,520.00$ 2,700.00$  1,180.00$  
9,501 - 10,000 1,250.00$ 320.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,615.00$ 2,850.00$  1,235.00$  

10,001 - 10,500 1,400.00$ 350.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,795.00$ 3,000.00$  1,205.00$  
10,501 - 11,000 1,550.00$ 390.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 1,985.00$ 3,150.00$  1,165.00$  
11,001 - 11,500 1,700.00$ 430.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 2,175.00$ 3,300.00$  1,125.00$  
11,501 - 12,000 1,850.00$ 470.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 2,365.00$ 3,450.00$  1,085.00$  
12,001 - 12,500 2,000.00$ 500.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 2,545.00$ 3,600.00$  1,055.00$  
12,501 - 13,000 2,150.00$ 540.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 2,735.00$ 3,750.00$  1,015.00$  
13,001 - 13,500 2,300.00$ 580.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 2,925.00$ 3,900.00$  975.00$     
13,501 - 14,000 2,450.00$ 620.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 3,115.00$ 4,050.00$  935.00$     
In Excess 14,000 2,500.00$ 630.00$   25.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 5.00$ 3,175.00$ 4,200.00$  1,025.00$  

Lbs. Overweight



Chapter 800 
COUNTY HIGHWAYS AND ROADS 

5 
 

 
 
In excess of the above category – add 4 cents per pound 
 

OVERDIMENSION FEES 

   
CATEGORY DIMENSIONS FEE TOTALS 

A 
10' WIDE OR LESS 

 $       21.00  14'6" HIGH OR LESS 
70' LONG OR LESS 

B 
12' WIDE OR LESS 

 $         30.00  14'6" HIGH OR LESS 
85' LONG OR LESS 

C 

14' WIDE OR LESS 

 $         21.00  

15' HIGH OR LESS 
100' LONG OR LESS 

MOBILE HOME 
COMBINATIONS 

85' LONG OR LESS 
D 18' WIDE OR LESS  $         60.00  

CATEGORY 1 2 3 4
FEE TOTAL 35.00$        115.00$      145.00$     280.00$      
TOTAL AXLES 6 OR MORE 6 OR MORE 6 OR MORE 6 OR MORE
GROSS WEIGHT (MAX) 88,000 LBS 100,000 LBS 110,000 LBS 120,000LBS
FRONT TANDEM OR AXLE, MAX/AXLE 34,000/2 44,000/2 44,000/2 48,000/2
REAR TANDEM OR AXLE, MAX/AXLE 48,000/3 54,000/2 54,000/3 60,000/3

CATEGORY 5 6 7 8
FEE TOTAL 145.00$     280.00$      115.00$     145.00$      
TOTAL AXLES 5 5 4 OR MORE 4 OR MORE
GROSS WEIGHT (MAX) 88,000 LBS 100,000 LBS 72,000 LBS 76,000LBS
FRONT TANDEM OR AXLE, MAX/AXLE 44,000/2 48,000/2 34,000/2 44,000/2
REAR TANDEM OR AXLE, MAX/AXLE 44,000/2 48,000/2 40,000/2 44,000/2

CATEGORY 9 10 11 12
FEE TOTAL 102.50$     145.00$      115.00$     145.00$      
TOTAL AXLES 3 OR MORE 3 OR MORE 2 2
GROSS WEIGHT (MAX) 60,000 LBS 68,000 LBS 48,000 LBS 64,000LBS
FRONT TANDEM OR AXLE, MAX/AXLE 21,000/1 21,000/1 25,000/1 28,000/1
REAR TANDEM OR AXLE, MAX/AXLE 40,000/2 48,000/2

OVERWEIGHT FEES



Chapter 800 
COUNTY HIGHWAYS AND ROADS 

6 
 

16' HIGH OR LESS 
120' LONG OR LESS 

E 
MORE THAN 18' WIDE 

 $      125.00  MORE THAN 16' HIGH 
MORE THAN 120' LONG 

 
 
Sec. 800-6  
Resolution to designate a Planning Commission to adopt an Official Comprehensive Plan for County from 
Economic Development Committee: This Comprehensive Plan is now located in first section of ordinances, 
adopted June 25, 2000 
 
Items that I would like to add to the County Ordinances through Resolu�ons if necessary 
 
PERMIT POLICY FOR ACCESS DRIVEWAYS TO CARROLL COUNTY HIGHWAY SYSTEM 
 
The county highway department engineer shall issue driveway installation permits upon 
approval by the engineer of the location of said driveway entrance fronting on a county roadway. 
 
Permit application forms are located on the Carroll County Highway Department’s 
website within the link stating “Permit Policy for Driveway Access”. This can be returned 
to the county highway department as to allow the department to evaluate the  
application. These can also be picked up at the Carroll County Highway office. 

 
Ordinance to charge for permit 



Chapter 800 
COUNTY HIGHWAYS AND ROADS 

7 
 

 
 
 
USE OF COUNTY ROADS BY UTILITY COMPANIES 
  
CONSENT REQUIRED: 



Chapter 800 
COUNTY HIGHWAYS AND ROADS 

8 
 

No ditches, drains, track, rails, poles, wires, pipeline or other equipment of any public 
utility company, municipal corporation or other public or private corporation, association 
or person shall be located, placed or constructed upon, under or along any county road 
without first obtaining the written consent of the county highway department. 

APPLICATION FOR CONSENT: 
Any entity applying for consent shall submit such information in a permit application 
form, located on the Carroll County Highway Department’s website within the link 
stating “Utilities Accommodations Manual”, to the county highway department as to 
allow the department to evaluate the entity's application. These can also be picked up at 
the Carroll County Highway office. 

 
Ordinance to charge for permit 



Chapter 800 
COUNTY HIGHWAYS AND ROADS 

9 
 

 
 

Sec. 800-8 DEPOSITS ON COUNTY ROADS 

(This would be a completely new section) 



Chapter 800 
COUNTY HIGHWAYS AND ROADS 

10 
 

DEPOSITS PROHIBITED: 
It shall be unlawful for any person to deposit or cause to be deposited on any county 
road or right of way any snow, ice, mud or refuse in such manner as to create an 
obstruction or hazard to vehicular traffic thereon. 

PENALTY: 
Violations of this chapter shall be punishable by a fine as provided in section 1-4-1 
GENERAL PENALTY of this code. Each day's failure to comply with the provisions of 
this chapter shall constitute a separate offense. 

GENERAL PENALTY: this is section 1-4-1 referenced above 
   A.   Penalty Imposed: Whenever in this code, or in any ordinance of the county, any 
act or omission is prohibited or is made or declared to be unlawful or an offense, or 
whenever in said code or ordinance the doing of any act or the failure to do any act is 
declared to be unlawful or an offense or is prohibited, and no specific penalty is 
provided therefor, and state law does not provide otherwise, the violation of any such 
provision of this code or any ordinance shall be an offense punishable by a fine of up to 
one thousand dollars ($1,000.00). 

   B.   Separate Offense For Each Day: Unless specifically provided otherwise, or the 
context thereof so dictates, each day any violation of any provision of this code or any 
ordinance shall continue shall constitute a separate offense. 

 

 

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/jodaviesscoil/latest/jodaviessco_il/0-0-0-109#JD_1-4-1


Consultant Agreements-Condition Process\11-2017 Page 1 

Carroll County Highway Department 

Policy for the Consultant Qualification Based Selection (QBS) Process 

The following sets forth the policy adopted by the Carroll County Highway Department (CCHD) that 
establishes procedures to be followed for the selection of Consulting firms that provide engineering, 
geotechnical, architectural and environmental services as well as other firms that provide specialized services 
that may be required by CCHD.  This policy as adopted governs consultant selection using both federal aid 
highway program funding (including state and MFT) as well as local funding.   

This policy has been adopted in compliance with IDOT Bureau of Local Roads and Streets (BLR&S) Policy 
Memorandum (PM) 2012-06, Section 5-5 of the BLR&S Manual and the Brooks Act, 40 U.S.C. 1101, Section 
1103(c).   

Selection of Funding Options 

The Carroll County Highway Department (CCHD) may choose to enter into an agreement with a professional 
design firm or a sole proprietorship meeting the requirements of 225 ILCS 325/23 to provide engineering 
services financed in whole or in part with Federal Aid (FA), State, Motor Fuel Tax (MFT), Township Bridge 
Program (TBP) funds or local funds.   

The selection of funding to be used and the applicable process will be based on the conditions as outline 
below:  

Condition Procurement Process 

Local funding only to be used for engineering services Local 

FA funds to be used.  Carroll Co. passes resolution declaring an emergency. Local 

FA funds to be used.  CCHD estimates engineering services to cost less than 
$25,000. 

Local 

FA funds to be used and CCHD has an existing relationship with a consulting 
firm.  Engineering fees would be less than $100,000.  (IDOT District approval 
required for fees over $100,000 but less than $150,000) 

Local 

FA funds to be used and engineering fees are over $150,000. QBS 

Note: CCHD may elect to use QBS process under any conditions. 

Carroll County Highway Department 
Policy for the Consultant Qualification Based Selection (QBS) Process 



Consultant Agreements-Condition Process\11-2017 Page 2 
 

QBS Procedure for Consultant Agreements using Federal, State, MFT funding 

Process Requirements 

General Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ) 

Every two years a non-project specific RFQ is to be sent to known 
consultants that have previously expressed an interest in performing 
services for CCHD.  The responses are to indicate the type of projects in 
which a firm is interested and qualified and will be kept on file until updated. 

Projects selected for which 
consultant services are to be 
used. 

CCHD Administration with staff consultation will select projects on the basis 
of expertise needed and CCHD staffing availability as well as scheduling 
requirements.  A project scope and tentative schedule will be determined for 
the RFQ. 

 

Project specific RFQ’s  

Project specific RFQ’s will be sent to consultants who have responded to the 
non-project specific RFQ that have indicated an interest and meet the 
qualifications required for the type of project for which services are being 
requested. 

 

 

Review and selection of 
consultants to be 
interviewed.  

At least three firms will be selected from those responding to the project 
specific RFQ based on an assessment, by CCHD staff knowledgeable of the 
project for which services are being requested.  The rating will be based on 
the firm’s qualifications, current workload and the ability of the firm to meet 
the CCHD schedule, and past CCHD experiences with the firm.  The firms 
judged by CCHD staff to be viable candidates based on the aforementioned 
criteria will be invited to be interviewed. 

 

Interview process 

Firms selected to be interviewed will be judged on the basis of qualifications, 
present workload, staffing availability and proximity to CCHD, understanding 
of the project and past experience.  A point system will be used to rate the 
firms being interviewed. 

Consultant selection and 
invitation to submit a 
proposal. 

The top three firms (rated by points) will be determined and recorded.  The 
top rated firm will be notified and invited to submit a proposal on the 
appropriate format (As designated by CCHD) that provides costs and scope 
of work. 

Contract negotiations The submitted proposal will be used as a basis for negotiations of the scope 
of work, schedule and fee.  If negotiations cannot be completed in a manner 
acceptable to CCHD, the second highest rated Consultant will be invited to 
submit a proposal. 

Contract approval Once the scope, fee and timetable have been agreed upon, the Consultant 
will submit an applicable agreement which is reviewed in the CCHD office, 
submitted to IDOT for review and approval and then presented to the 
County Board for final approval. 

Carroll County Highway Department 
Policy for the Consultant Qualification Based Selection (QBS) Process 



Consultant Agreements-Condition Process\11-2017 Page 3 
 

QBS Procedure for Consultant Agreements using Local funding 

Process Requirements 

General Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ) 

Every two years a non-project specific RFQ is to be sent to known 
consultants that have previously expressed an interest in performing 
services for CCHD.  The responses are to indicate the type of projects in 
which a firm is interested and qualified and will be kept on file until updated. 

Projects selected for which 
consultant services are to be 
used. 

CCHD Administration with staff consultation will select projects on the basis 
of expertise needed and CCHD staffing availability as well as scheduling 
requirements.  A project scope and tentative schedule will be determined for 
the RFQ. 

 

Project specific RFQ’s  

Project specific RFQ’s will be sent to Consultants who have demonstrated 
the capability of completing similar projects in a satisfactory manner and 
have maintained a cooperative relationship with CCHD.  

Review and selection of 
consultants to be 
interviewed.  

Firms responding to the project specific RFQ will be rated based on an 
assessment, by CCHD staff knowledgeable of the project for which services 
are being requested.  The rating will be based on the firm’s qualifications, 
current workload and the ability of the firm to meet the CCHD schedule as 
well as past CCHD experiences with the firm.   

Interview process The highest rated firm will be interviewed to discuss in detail the scope of 
work and CCHD expectations for the project and services.   

Consultant selection and 
invitation to submit a 
proposal. 

The interviewed firm will be directed to submit a proposal in a format 
designated by CCHD. 

Contract negotiations The submitted proposal will be used as a basis for negotiations of the scope 
of work, schedule and fee.  If negotiations cannot be completed in a manner 
acceptable to CCHD, the second highest rated Consultant will be invited for 
an interview and given the opportunity to submit a proposal. 

Contract approval Once the scope, fee and timetable have been agreed upon, the Consultant 
will submit an applicable agreement which is reviewed in the CCHD office, 
and then presented to the County Board for final approval. 

Date Adopted: _______________________________________ 

Approved: __________________________________________________ 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

BEST, Inc. 
Business Employment Skills Team 

Serving Northwest Central Illinois 

www.best-inc.org 

,,---,. A proud partner of the AmencanJobCenter·network 

MEMORANDUM 

Kathy Enbom, Co-Chair Gary Camarano 
James Duffy Chris Flikkema 
Keane Hudson Kevin Lindeman 
Steve Malavolti Michael McEmery 
Kerwin Paris Wayne Reising 
LaDon Trost Jamey Sulser 

Carrie Folken, Executive Director 

� 
December 12, 2023 

BEST, Inc. Board Meeting Notice 

The Business Employment Skills Team, Inc. Board of Director's will meet on Monday, 

December 18, 2023, 6:30 .m. at the Lee ,Coullty Beard CoJ1fereoce Ro01ll!l rin rtlle Old Lee 
County Ceflrib9use, Dixmi, !IL or by Zoom. A light dinner will be served starting at 6:00 

p.m.

Should you have any questions regarding any of the materials that are enclosed, please feel free 
to contact Carrie at 815-224-0369 or email her at carrie_folken@best-inc.org. 

Please confirm your participation at this meeting by emailing Jo Ann at joann johnson@best
inc.org or calling her at 815-224-0375. Thank you. 

815 N. Orlando Smith Avenue, Room C328 • Oglesby, IL 61348 



Business Employment Skills Team, Inc. 

Board of Directors' Meeting 

December 18, 2023 

6:30 p.m. 

Lee County Board Conference Room 

Old Lee County Courthouse, Dixon, IL 

Or 

Join Zoom 

https :/ /us02web.zoom.us/j/89563520031 

Meeting ID: 895 6352 0031 

Dial by your location 

• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

Meeting ID: 895 6352 0031

AGENDA 

I. Call to Order (James Duffy/ Kathy Enbom)

II. Roll Call

III. PY 22 Audit Repo1i (Jessica Green/ Rusty Gibson) (Adult Report is available as a separate
document)

IV. Approval of the October 23, 2023 Meetings Minutes (Page 1) (Action Item)

V. Public Comments.

VI. Executive Director Report

• Legislative Update (Page 4)

• NCI Works Update (Page 4)

• Apprenticeship Activities Update (Page 4)

• Healthcare Smmnit (Page 5)

• Supplemental Grant (Page 5)

• Trade Grant (Page 7)

• Program Services Team (Page 7)

• Podcast Numbers (Page 8)



• Outreach (Page 8)

► Tracking of our outreach effo1is with new customers

• Offices and Personnel (Page 8)

• Activities since last meeting (Page 8)

PY 23 Dashboard (Page l 0) 

PY '23 Participant Reports (Page 15) 
PY '23 Business Relations Unit Report (Page 16) 
Success Stories/Recognitions (Page 17) 

VII. HR Co1mnittee Report (Wayne Reising)

1. Approval of Employee Health and Life Insurance Renewal (Page 28) (Action Item)

2. 2024 Holiday Schedule (Page 30) (informational only)

VIII. Finance Director Rep01i (Jessica Green) (Page 31)

1. Trade Grant
2. PY 23 WIOA Expenditure Ratios
3. PY 23 Apprenticeship Expansion

4. PY 22 Audit Approval (Sent Under Separate Cover) (Action Item)

5. Approval of the Fiscal Reports ending October 31, 2023 (32) (Action Item)

IX. Other Business

► Election of Officers (Action Item)

Current Officers: James Duffy/Kathy Enbom - Co-Chairs 
Stephen Malavolti - Secretary 

• Meeting Schedule for 2024
February 26 
April 22 
June 24 
August 26 
October 28 
December 23 

X. Adjournment



Business Employment Skills Team, Inc. 
(Hybrid) Meeting Minutes 

October 23, 2023 

The Business Employment Skills Team, Inc. Board of Director's Meeting was called to order at 6:30 
p.m. by Co-Chair James Duffy. Roll call was taken.

Name Present Absent Name Present Absent 

Gary Camarano X Steven Malavolti Proxy 

James Duffy X Michael McEmery X 

Kathy Enbom Proxy Kerwin Paris X 

Chris Flikkema Proxy Wayne Reising X 

Keane Hudson X Jamey Sulser Proxy 

Kevin Lindeman Proxy LaDon Trost X 

PROXY: Kathy Enbom to Jim Duffy, Chris Flikkema to Jim Duffy, Kevin Lindeman to Wayne 
Reising, Steven Malavolti to Kerwin Paris, Jamey Sulser to Wayne Reising 

OTHERS PRESENT: Carrie Folken, Jo Ann Johnson, Jessica Green 

Approval of Meetings Minutes 

Kerwin Paris motioned to approve the August 28, 2023 Meeting Minutes. Motion was seconded by 
Keane Hudson. Roll Call vote was taken. 

Name Yes No Name Yes No 
Gary Camarano X Steven Malavolti X 

James Duffy X Michael McEmery X 

Kathy Enbom X Kerwin Paris X 

Chris Flikkema X Wayne Reising X 

Keane Hudson X Jamey Sulser X 

Kevin Lindeman X LaDon Trost 
Motion carried. 

Public Comments 

None 

Executive Director Report 

Carrie informed members that she had a few updates to her typed report that was included with the 
meeting materials. She told members that she received a phone call this morning regarding the 
Supplemental Grant application that was submitted to DCEO after the August CEO meeting. Carrie said 
that DCEO requested some additional information so she in the process of making those revisions and 
will resubmit it to DCEO. Carrie explained to members the formulas that the State used to determine 

1 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



the funding available for the grant. She said that our local area was allowed $460,000 but the grant was 
written for $442,000. 

Carrie thanked the Chief Elected Officials for allowing her to attend their respective County Board 
meetings to give an overview of the previous Program Year achievements. 

Carrie pointed out that in the Offices and Personnel section of her typed report, she mentioned that an 
Exit Interview was completed by Jessica McCann who left BEST for personal circumstances. Carrie 
said that one of the questions in the Exit Interview is "What suggestions would you offer for improving 
the office in which you have worked?" Carrie told members that Jessica pointed out that the Ottawa 
office is extremely unhealthy. Carrie noted that IDES is the Leaseholder of this office and throughout 
the years it has animal infestation, broken pipes that caused flooding, dead squirrels in the ceiling, mold 
and now the adjacent building is storage for chemicals from Carus Chemicals. Carrie told members that 
currently the Ottawa Office serves as the One Stop for the Local Workforce Area but is planning to talk 
with local Partners and Local Workforce Board about possibly moving the One Stop to the Sterling 
IDES Office. After discussion, members expressed their concern regarding the condition of the building 
and concurred with Carrie's decision to talk with the Partners and Local Workforce Board. Although 
the BEST Board does not have a voting right to move the One Stop Center, they all expressed their 
support to move the One Stop Center to Sterling. 

PY 23 Dashboard 

In reviewing the Dashboard, Jim had a few questions on the Direct Training Expenditure and Adult 
Program slides. After reviewing the documents, corrections were noted and will be reflected in the next 
Dashboard. Carrie informed members that the Trade Grant has been closed out so the next Dashboard 
will not have any Trade Grant information. 

Success Stories 

Carrie pointed out to members that one of the Facebook post was of Martin Foster who was the Illinois 
Workforce Partnership Local Award Winner. Carrie said that he was honored at a luncheon recently in 
Springfield, IL. 

Finance Director Report 

Jessica informed members that the Auditors are finishing up the PY 22 Audit and they are still reporting 
zero findings. She said that they are planning to make a presentation to the full Board at the December 
BEST Board Meeting. 

In reviewing the Fiscal Reports, Jim asked why there were negative costs on the PY 23 Grant Page. 
Jessica explained how projections are reflected on the current financial report and noted that the format 
is cumbersome and she is in the process of reformatting it to a simpler easy to understand document. 
Jessica also noted that at the time of this report, there were no expenditures recorded to the PY 23 Grant, 
adding the next report will reflect PY 23 expenditures beginning in September. Members told Jessica 
that they were open to a report that was easier to understand. She thanked them for their support and 
said she is hoping to have it for their review at the next meeting. 

2 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



Approval of the Fiscal Reports 

Wayne Reising motioned to approve the July & August 2023 Fiscal Reports. Motion was seconded by 
Kerwin Paris. Roll Call vote was taken. 

Name Yes No Name Yes No 

Gary Camarano X Steven Malavolti X 
James Duffy X Michael McEmery X 

Kathy Enbom X Kerwin Paris X 
Chris Flikkema X Wayne Reising X 
Keane Hudson X Jamey Sulser X 
Kevin Lindeman X LaDon Trost 
Motion carried. 

Other Business 

Jim informed members that the next BEST Board Meeting will be Monday, December 18, 2023 with the 
location to be announced closer to the date. Jo Ann noted that the HR Committee would be meeting 
prior to the BEST Board meeting in December. 

Adjournment 

With there being no further business, Kerwin Paris motioned to adjourn. Motion was seconded by 
Keane Hudson and carried. Meeting adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 

Approved by: 

�tJ� 
Steven Malavolti 
Secretary 

Jo Ann Johnson 

3 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



Director Report for December Board meeting 

Legislative update 

FEDERAL: A continuing resolution was passed until February but DCEO did receive all the 
funds for PY 23 after October 1st so we should have access to our whole allocation. 

A new bipartisan bill was drafted to replace WIOA - A Stronger Workforce for America Act. It 
is still very new and we are getting information about it daily. 

NCI Works 

The Workforce Board approved another year for Jeff Marcella to be the independent contractor 
for the MOU budget negotiations. I did ask all the partners if we would like to have NCI Works 
look at different opportunities for the comprehensive one stop. We are looking for 2 new 
business members for the wor¼:force board. We have had a retirement and a switch of job 
responsibilities. 

Apprenticeship Activities 

Our signed grant has now been received. It was received October 2nd. 

Requirements of the grant: 

Monthly grantee meetings - Staff have been attending monthly grantee meetings conducted by 
NIU and the state's Apprenticeship Mentor. These are held on the first Monday of each month. 
There are 3 contractors from NIU, in addition to our DCEO Grant Manager, that provide 
technical assistance to the grantees. The state mentor provides technical assistance as well. 
Topics of these meetings include reports by each grantee as to progress and challenges being 
met. Additional meetings have been scheduled that will focus on meeting DEIA (Diversity; 
Equity, Inclusion and Accessibility) expectations of the grant and will begin in December. 
Illinois workNet also holds technical assistance sessions concerning the use ofworkNet for our 

� tracking and reporting of planned and actual numbers. Reporting is done quarterly and we have 
made good use of this technical assistance for our first reporting period that ended October 31st_

Talent Pipeline Management Training...,.. Training on the US Chamber's TPM tool has also begun 
since my last report. Tammy Nehrkom, Laura Olson and I were all accepted into the program. 
DCEO is paying for the course for grantees so it is not part of our grant agreement or budget. 
This training meets 2 hours a week and consists of a capstone project. Capstone project teams, of 
which Tammy is one group and Laura and I in another, meet anywhere from 1 to 3 hours a week 
to work on the required project. Total approximate time spent in this effort ranges from 5 to 7 
hours per week for each ofus between the classroom time, project time, and pre-work that is 
required for each week's class. 

Apprenticeship Activities: 

Staff have held 3 of our 6 planned events thus far with the most reoent being the Healthcare 
Event at IVCC. These events along with individual meetings with companies has resulted in 74 
contacts met out of the 175 planned. 

4 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



Wolf Line Construction Update: We have the training information for Wolf Line and will be 
meeting with them weekly now to finalize the standards. Illinois has 2 additional requirements 
that we will be inserting: training in safety relevant to the occupation and anti-sexual harassment 
training. This fall in order to keep employees on track we covered some training through our 
regular WIOA Incumbent Worker Training while we awaited our final signed grant. 

Jo Carroll Energy: We are waiting on a good amount of information from Jo Carroll energy so 
that this project can move forward. We need company and union information for the standards 
in order to submit them. We have received the training information from the National 
Broadband Association and once we receive the company information we can draft the standards 
and get them to DOL Region 5 Office of Apprenticeships. 

Morrison Technical Institute Train the Trainer and Training Materials - We have all the 
information necessary to provide the train the trainer training for the instruction at MIT for the Jo 
Carroll project. However, the standards need to be completed and signed before it would be 
prudent to finalize train the trainer_plans. Training materials, which were included in our grant 
budget, would also need to be purchased once the standards are finalized. Jo Carroll Energy 
volunteered to procure the materials through their established providers and the grant will either 
pay for them upfront on a net 30 basis or reimburse Jo Carroll for the costs. 

For the virtual reality career exploration goggles, we are waiting for the completion of 
procurement on 2 sets of goggles and 10 virtual experiences. Jo Carroll Energy volunteered to 
complete this task and once done those can be purchased and placed at the Whiteside CTE and 
the CTE Academy in Elizabeth. 

Healthcare Summit 

On Tuesday, November 14th BEST, Inc with the partnership ofIVCC brought in Pat Schou to give 
her expertise in providing valuable perspe_ctives on the transformations occurring within the 
healthcare industry, particularly in rural settings. 23 individuals were present for the meeting. 

Looking ahead, we are enthusiastic about building on the conversations initiated during the event. 
The potential for collaboration between local healthcare entities and IVCC/BEST is substantial 
and holds the promise of creating positive change within our region! Meetings will be conducted 
twice a year for input and feedback of workforce needs. 

Supplemental Grant 

Project Number 1 

The local area had communication with homeless shelters and other community based 
organization to discover that a lack of computers to be used in the growing population of the 
shelters was a big issue. In one shelter particularly, they have seen an increase of over 20 people 
for a longer time span then in previous years at this time. Computers would be used for job 
search, online interviews, and education to better advance the residents to be job ready. In this 

5 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



project 2-3 computers would be purchased for each shelter or community based organization 
with the grant funds along with essential supplies needed for the job search. Some essentials 
supplies would consist of resume paper, printer, ink, and envelopes. 

The very nature of a shelter indicates that most of the population will be accessing these tools in 

the evening and overnight hours which little to no access in the community would be available 

during those times. It is vital to our declining workforce pool to put the tools in the hands of 
individuals that could increase that population. 

Project Number 2 

Professional Development in the form of an inclusive conference is needed in rural Illinois. 

Although workshops are offered online for a reasonable amount, some workforce professionals 

do not have in their budget, money for an in-person rural professional development opportunity 
•• to network with like professionals to aid in common workforce needs. This conference would be

centered on Workforce Professionals, Educators and Business that have common needs to help

assist todays and tomorrow's workforce. Some examples may include; mental health, job

coaching, substance abuse, rural resources, and barriers to overcome. This conference would

be paid for in total by this grant to allow for more individuals to participate on a very limited

budget. Increasing the network to work together in a rural community will benefit all the

interested parties.

Project Number 3

Work Based Learning in the form of Work Experience for individuals who are not WIOA
. _ . participants. This was brought up in conversation with the homeless shelters, the older workers, 

and also with individuals who may be involved in the court system. Allowing for a more 

structured staff assisted work experience to gain that positive work reference for individuals with 

all types of barriers. This would allow for individuals who may be having a hard time finding 
. that perfect job/career to test the waters before jumping in. It also allows for the employer to 

invest withouthaving 100% of the cost. Wages, Workers Compensation and FICA would be 

paid out of this grant. Number of hours, length of agreement and pay would depend on the 
occupation and the individual experience. 

Project Number 4 

"Work in the Real World" career exploration. This event would be located in two areas of the 
Local Workforce Area. It would be a career exploration event with presentations from local 

businesses to attract young local talent to stay or return to our local area. Careers in occupations 
that are in demand or are facing a large number of openings due to retirement will be represented 

as well as the military. This event will target high school students and college enrollees. Cost of 

the event will be paid for by this grant along with transportation, giveaways, and lunch. 

Administration costs in the amount of 10% of the full grant amount would allow for overseeing 

and managing this grant. 

Total Grant $452,153.39 

6 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



Trade Grant 

Since Trade is a mandated partner for WIOA, Department of Labor has issued funds to maintain 

staff through reauthorization or a change in WIOA mandated patiners. The CEOs will be voting 

on the initial Trade application for 13,799.06 (10/1/2023 to 9/30/2024) 

Program Service Team 

A representative from North Central Behavioral Systems joined the group this month. NCBHS 
recently received a grant to become a Certified Community Behavioral Health Center, which will 
allow them to expand their services, including a new Behavioral Health Outpatient Urgent Care 
Clinic for individuals experiencing mild or moderate psychiatric distress or c1isis should be up 
and running in early 2024. 

They also spoke about their other services, who they serve, and how to make refe1rnls. 

astone@ncbhs.org 

Rick Koshko is the new TCOC staff member covering Ottawa. 

Rick's contact infonnation-

Phone: 815-590-7224. 

Email: rkoshko@tcochelps.org. Primary office is located at a Servant's Heati in Ottawa. 

Adult Ed. 

GED registration for spring is ongoing now. Goodwill is no longer holding classes, but will help 

pay for the testing. 

TCOC 

Energy assistance program is now in full-swing. 

60+ SSDI or households with children 5 and under. 

In November, those with disconnection notice or are disconnected will open. Can take up to a 

week to get back to people. 

Homeless Prevention - PADS shelter, etc. Have some funding for rehousing. Have to find 

housing, which is a stumbling block. A lot of the housing resources are getting filled up. 

DHS - Holding workshops for T ANF recipients. Will refer to IDES workshops as well. 

IDES - RESEA workshops are monthly, about 6-10 attend. RefelTals to WIOA are continuing as 

well. 

BEST - Noted that the online refeITal system would be reviewed. C1mently seeing clients by 

appointment in Ottawa office, but IVCC is open for drop-ins. 

7 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



PODCAST Numbers 

Total = 20,806 

July = 284 
August = 114 
September- 104 
October- 211 
November- 174 

OUTREACH 

Total New Clients for September and October= 34 

COUNTY 

Whiteside: 13, Lee: 6, Ogle: 5, Carroll: 0, Jo Daviess: 0, Bureau: 1, LaSalle: 9, Putnam: 

REFERRAL SOURCES 

Rapid Response -1, Client 2, Friend 8, Relative 2, Training Provider I 4, Partner 7, Self-2 

OFFICES and PERSONNEL 

2 Sterling Staff have moved to the new IDES office and that transition went well. 

We have received word that the Dixon location in the Old Lee County Courthouse does not have 

an end date but were told that we should be good for the next 6 mo to stay in the office. I will 

touch base with the New Administrator mid-March for progress. 

We are starting the MOU process and have introduced the option for Sterling to be the One Stop 

with the partners. Our first MOU meeting will be in January to further discuss this for the year 

starting July 1, 2024. 

Janelle Mrowicki was hired to fill the vacant position in the Ottawa office working with the 

Youth in the Contracted programs. 

Activities since last meeting: 

Manufacturing Expo - NCIBC 
Illinois Workforce Partnership Legislative Committee 
Weekly DCEO Technical Assistance work group (x4) 
Illinois Workforce Partnership Executive Committee (x2) 
Illinois Workforce Partnership Monthly meeting (x2) 
Conference Call with DCEO on WIOA Funding 
National Association of Workforce Development Conference (x5) 
LaSalle County Healthier Community Steering C01mnittee 
Healthcare Summit 

8 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



DCEO Trade call 
Manufacturing Expo debriefing committee 
DCEO MOU/Planning webinar for PY 2024 
Monthly DCEO meeting 
NCI Works Targeted Populations meeting 
LaSalle County Healthy Behaviors work group 
Monthly management meeting 
IV AC breakfast with OSF updates in the Illinois Valley 
OSF Hospital Board meeting 
Vacation 
Rapid Response calls planning Monterey Mushroom RR 

9 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



PY 23 Dashboard 
July 1, 2023 - October 31, 2023 Reporting Period 

Lee, Ogle, Whiteside Regional Office of 
Education 

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 

108

Total Enrollment*

20
- 1 

High School Equivalency

■ Planned Goal ■ Actual Goal

88 Students are emailed in 1 of the 14 elements that the contractor 
provides 
Contract Amount: $ 189,456.00 
Expenditure Amount: $ 35,986.54 

LaSalle County Reigonal Office of Education 

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 

88 

Total Enrollment

22

-0

High School Diploma

■ Planned ■ Actual

63 Students are emailed in 1 of the 14 elements that the contractor 
provides 
Contract Amount: $ 128,940.44 
Expenditure Amount: $ 0 

35

Bureau Henry Stark Regional Office of 

Education 
July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 

16

1° 
Total Enrollment High School

Equivalency

■ Planned ■ Actual

22 Students are enrolled in 1 of the 14 elements that the contractor provides 
Contract Amount: $ 83,357.25 
Expenditure Amount: $ 11,310.41 

Youth Service Provider Expenditures 

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 

$401,753.69

$47,296.95

■ Total PY 23 Contracts ■ Total Program Expenditures

Planned Enrollments: 230 
Actual Enrollments: 173 

10 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



Youth Program (includes Youth Providers) 

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 

$985,711.20 

$136,796.65 $156,264.01 

$19,467.36 
-

■ PY 23 Youth Funds Available ■ Total Youth Program Expenditures

■Total Admin Youth Expeditures ■Total Youth Expenditures

Planned Enrollments: 

Actual Enrollments: 

200 

152 

Dislocated Worker Program 

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 

$1,246,054.72 

$84,964.53 $12,091.20 $97,055.73 

■ PY 23 Dislocated Worker Funds Available

■ Total Dislocated Worker Expenditures

I! Total Ad min Dislocated Worker Expeditures 

■Total Dislocated Worker Expenditures

Planned Enrollments: 76 

Actual Enrollments: 40 

Adult Program 

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 

$1,754,738.77 

$196,976.26 $225,007.71 
$28,031.45 

■ PY 23 Adult Funds Available ■ Total Program Adult Expenditures

■Total Admin Adult Expenditures ■Total Adult Expenditures

Planned Enrollments: 

Actual Enrollments: 

191 

144 

Incumbent Worker Program 

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 

$179,036.00 

$76,659.73 

$12,470.98 

■ Total Funds Available

■ Total Contract Amounts Obligated

■ Expenditures, Wages & Benefits

Total Number oflndividuals In Contracts to be Trained: 259 

11 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



0 ...... 
0 

N O") 'SI" N LJ") ...... 'SI" 
...... ...... 

Ill II 
Youth Adult 

Customers Receiving Services 

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 

O") 

N 

I
O

o 

<J) 'SI" 

--
N 

Dislocated Tracie Incumbent 

Workers Worker 

Training 

■ Planned ■ Actual

r---

0") 
LJ") 

Total 

Served 

Note: There are no "Planned" numbers for Trade, lE and Incumbent Worker 
Training 

Direct Training Expenditure 

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 

70.00% 

50% 

Adult Dislocated Worker 

■ Required ■ Actual

Financial Snapshot 

20%20.60% 

Youth Woi-1< Based 

Learning 

(Adult, Dislocated Worker, Youth & Trade) 

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 

$3,718,058.61 

$479,078.82 

■ Total Grant Income

■ Expenditures

$3,171,207.30 

11 Total Expenditures & Projected Obligations 

Percentage of Budget Spent: 13% 

Percentage of Funds Obligated: 85% 

12 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



Business Relations Unit Contacts 

July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023 

28 

■ Telephone ■ In Person ■ Email

Business Contacts: 1 70 

Incumbent Worker Training Contracts: 6 

13 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



Adults 
Measure 

2nd Quarter Employment 
Median 

4th Quarter Employment 

Dislocated Workers 
Measure 

2nd Quarter Employment 
Median 

4th Quarter Employment 

Youth 
Measure 
2nd Quarter Employment 
4th Quarter Employment 
Median 

Definitions: 

Program Year 22 Local Performance Measures for Title IB 
Q4 Report 

Threshold - Goal Current Num/Dem of exits 

77.4-86 84.75 100/118 
$9360. -$10,400. 9,809.75 100 
77.4-86 84.68 105/124 

Threshold -Goal Current Num/Dem of exits 

77.4-86.0 87.5 56/64 
$8235-$9150. $12,336.68 56 
72.9-81 84 ·42/50

Threshold -Goal Current Num!Dem of exits 
63.9-71 76.71 56/73 
65.25-72.5 66.7 40/60 
$3420. -$3800. $4,386.62 55 

Per quarter 
eammgs 
$ 898,414.03 

$ 1,176,340.27 

Per quarter 
eammgs 
$ 692,176.42 

$ 557,005.27 

Per quarter earnings 
$ 274,580.61 
$ 246,721.89 

2
nd 

Quarter Performance: The percentage of participants who are in unsubsidized employment during the second quarter after exit from the program ( for title I Youth, 
the indicator is the percentage of participants in education or training activities, or in unsubsidized employment during the second quarter after exit) 

4th Quarter Performance: The percentage of participants who are in unsubsidized employment during the fourth quarter after exit from the program ( for title I Youth, 
the indicator is the percentage of participants in education or training activities, or in unsubsidized employment during the fourth quarter after exit) 

Median Earnings: The median earnings of participants who are in unsubsidized employment during the second quarter after exit from the program 

Credential Attainment: The percentage of those participants enrolled in an education or training program ( excluding those in on-the-job training ( OJT) and customized 
training) who attain a recognized postsecondary credential or a secondary school diploma, or its recognized equivalent, during participation in or within one year after exit 
from the program. A participant who has attained a secondary school diploma or its recognized equivalent is included in the percentage of participants who have attained a 
secondary school diploma or its recognized equivalent only if the participant also is employed or is enrolled in an education or training program leading to a 
recognized postsecondary credential within one year after exit from the program. 

14 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



Active l-'art1c1pant Keportmg 10/31/2023 

Adults: Current Total Youth Current Total Current Total 

Classroom Training 154 132 Work Experience 25 25 Total Number Enrolled all titles 328 355 

Transportation/Child Care 118 131 Tutoring 0 0 Total Number in Follow up 159 

On-the-Job Training 1 1 Credit Recovery Program 66 66 Total Number of Universal Services 452 

Job Search 119 180 GED 22 22 

Work Experience 2 3 Occupational Training 6 6 

Follow up services 0 51 Supportive Services 18 18 

Total non duplicated# 144 163 Follow up services 0 93 

Total non duplicated# 150 153 

Dislocated Workers Current Total 

Classroom Training 26 28 

Transportation/Child Care 18 19 

On-the-Job Training 1 1 

Job Search 27 46 

Work Experience 0 0 

Follow up services 0 15 

Total non duplicated# 34 39 

Clients by county 

Bureau 35 

Carroll 5 

Jo Daviess 1 

LaSalle 113 

Lee 67 

Ogle 38 

Putnam 6 

Whiteside 107 

Other 1 

Offices July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total 

Dixon 8 5 5 10 28 

IVCC 13 9 3 3 28 

Ottawa 1 8 17 7 33 

Oregon 1 4 5 4 14 

Princeton 8 20 8 9 45 

Sterling 99 84 46 75 304 

452 

15 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



PY23 BSU Report for BEST Board (through October 2023) Rapid Response Numbers are Program Year to Date 

County 

Bureau 

Carroll 

Jo Daviess 

LaSalle 

Lee 

Ogle 

Putnam 

White-side 

Total 

Total 

Number of 

Initial 

Contacts 

2 

5 

6 

88 

16 

17 

7 

28 

169 

Total 

Number 

Follow Up 

Contacts 

0 

11 

5 

113 

18 

9 

0 

58 

214 

Number of 

contacts 

that were 

face to 

face 

1 

8 

6 

201 

16 

10 

7 

55 

304 

Number of Number of 

contact that Contacts 

were 

through 

email 

0 

8 

5 

0 

15 

12 

0 

27 

67 

that were 

through 

phone 

1 

0 

0 

0 

3 

4 

0 

4 

12 

Purpose of 

Contacts 

WBL, other 

WBL, other 

WBL, other 

WBL, other 

WBL, other 

WBL, other 

WBL, other 

WBL, other 

N/A 

•• Number of RR workshops includes both local and state level WARN events .

Number of 

Chamber 

Events 

attended 

0 

0 

0 

13 

0 

0 

0 

0 

4 

••Number of •••Number of 

Rapid 

Response 

Workshop 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

other 

meetings/event 

sAttended 

1 

4 

3 

22 

3 

4 

1 

13 

51 

... 1nc1uaes JOO searcn worKsnops, conrerences, persone11 assoc1at1ons, LWltl committees meeting, ana omer ousiness services

related meetings including individual meetings for apprenticeship development. Does not include Apprenticeship Events which will 
be reported in the narrative update. 

Counw 

Bureau 

Carroll 

Jo Daviess 

LaSalle 

Lee 
Ogle 

Putnam 

White

side 

Total 

Number of Incumbent Worker Tralnln Pro ects 

3 Carried Forward: Martin Engineering -$1,330 for 1 employee in CNC Reg. 

Apprenticeship. Martin Engineering -$8675.75 for 25 employees in Welding. Martin 

Engineering-$20,311.78 for 90 employees Lean Overview with Simulation, 5 New: 

LW Schneider $23,850 for 137 employee in ISO Certification, Martin Engineering -

Principles of Project Management $1,695 for 1 employee, Martin Engineering - Root 

Cause $1,295 for 1 employee, Martin Engineering-GD&T $1,000 for 1 employee, 

Martin Engineering- Forklift Driving and Safety $390 for 3 employees 

2 New: Wolf Line Construction %20,600.55 for Fiber Optic for 8 

employees, Wolf Line Construction $7,315 for High Voltage Safety 

for 8 employees 
1 Larnea t-orwara: ::.tarvea KOCK wooa Proaucts :;>Ll:S�.LU ror 1 

employee in CAD. 2 New: Epsilyte $12,079 for 4 employees in 

Operator Fundementals, Carus $9,500 for 2 Employees in Welding 

Apprenticeship 

1 Carried Forward: P&P Industries $624 1 employee for Tool and Die 

Apprenticeship, 1 New: Cimco Recycling $5,148 CDL for 1 employee 

5 Carried Forward for 118 employees and New for 156 employees 

Adult/OW 

NewWE 

2 Adults 

#of NewOJTs 

1 Adult 

1 Adult 

Current Projects: This month was busy with manufacturing events and chamber events. I was able to attend the 

Manufacturing Expo put on by the Streator Chamer of Commerce. Over 200 students from different schools were in 

attendance with over 8 different Vendors present. I also attended the Manufacturing Expo that IVCC put on. There were 

also over 200 students in attendance at this Expo. Other meetings included Apprenticship Grant meetings, TPM training 

events, Ambassador meeting and the IVAC Planning Session with the Ambassador and Board members. I was also able to 

attend IVACs after hours on October 5 at Machinery Maintenance. I was able to start 4 new In School Youth Work 

Experience Work Sites this month as well. Hennepin Food Mart, Valley Flowers and Gifts, U's Garden Cafe and Putnam 

County High School. Dianna, Laura, and Tammy continue to work with area businesses and DOL on apprenticeship 

efforts through the new apprenticeship expansion grant. Dianna will continue to provide narrative updates on those 

apprenticeship efforts. 

16 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



SUCCESS STORIES / RECOGNITIONS 

From Princeton Office 

"My name is Tasha and I live in Bureau County. I am a 2nd year nursing student entering 
into my very last semester in Fall 2023 ! With the assistance of your program, the 
financial demands of nursing school that I was not able to meet on my own were 
graciously met and I was able to focus on academics versus how or if I was going to be 
·able to make that next tuition payment. With your help, I've maintained a 4.0 GP A
throughout the program, made the Presidents list each semester, was inducted into Alpha
Delta Nu Nursing Honor Society and now serve as the President. In addition to these
things that your help and support have helped me achieve, I was also selected for a
wonderful 8 week summer internship learning opportunity that has the potential to evolve
into a job offer contingent upon graduation and successful licensure. Words can never
express my gratitude! Thank you for your dedication and involvement in such a life
giving and life changing program!"

Respectfully,

Natashia

The above Success Story was submitted by Natashia on May 17, 2023. I would like to

provide an update on her successes as of November 28, 2023.

Natashia completed her 3rd round of interviews with the Mayo Clinic and has been
offered a residency position as soon as she completes her NCLEX, not to mention, that
these offers are not generally given to a 2 year Nursing Student.

Natashia is also receiving the honor of Summa cum laude for her achievements of
maintaining all A's the duration of her studies. Natashia's pinning will be December 14th

at Waubonsee Community College.

With every accomplishment that she has achieved, Natashia has always made sure to call
me and provide me with the best reports. All her hard work and determination have
certainly been paying off. The sky is the limit for this girl!

***** 

From Sterling Office 

Cheryl was referred to the BEST, Inc office in Sterling by the Illinois Department of 
Employment Security. She lost her job in an Amazon warehouse in Seattle, WA in 2022 and 
relocated to Illinois. She wanted to train for a different career and contacted BEST to see if she 
qualified for assistance with tuition and fees for a nursing program in Rock Island. 

17 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



Cheryl was determined eligible for WIOA services as a dislocated worker and was able to get 

help from BEST, Inc. with tuition assistance and mileage reimbursement for the nursing program 

at Trinity College of Nursing. She successfully completed the program in September of 2023 and 

passed her NCLEX shortly thereafter. 

Cheryl was hired as an ER nurse in October of 2023 at Unity Point Trinity in the Quad Cities. 

18 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



;;;;; Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4 
. .., � December 5 at 3:44 PM · 0 

Another new episode of Getting to Work. A podcast or NCI Worl<sl 

E71: Wor1<Share: A Win-Win for Employers and Employees 

This episode features an interview with Tory Davis and Jane Verplaetse from the Illinois 
Department of Employment Security as they discuss the WorkShare program. They explain how 
the program allows employers to reduce employee hours by 20-60% while retaining staff and 
providing partial unemployment benefits, enabling businesses to navigate economic downturns 
without laying off their skilled workforce. They also outline the program benefits, eligibility, and 
the enrollment process. 

NCIWORXS.OftG 
NCI Works 

,_ Home NEWS & EVENTS BEST, INC. RECOGNIZES NATIONAL 
EST CENT RA APPRENTICESHIP WEEK Health Fair Hiring Events Drive Thru Job Fair Dnve 

Thru Job Fair Your Input Is Needed! Jobapalooza Virtual Recruitment Fair ... 

.JL r'\ ,. _____ .. 

;;1 Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4 
, 2d·0 

Check out the latest NCI Worl<s episode of Getting to Work! 

E70: Creating a Culture of Innovation 

A ri..-r-

Tune in for a conversation with workforce consultant Dawn Karber as she discusses developing a 
culture of innovation within organizations. Dawn reveals why innovation matters for both 
employees and the company, common obstacles like risk aversion and resistance to change, and 
practical tips for fostering innovation. She also shares an inspiring story of veteran employees 
feeling empowered and argues that innovation stems from an inclusive process focused on end
user needs rather than constraints. 

NClWORICS.ORG 

NCI Works 

Home NEWS & EVENTS BEST, INC. RECOGNIZES NATIONAL 
APPRENTICESHIP WEEK Health Fair Hiring Events Drive Thru Job Fair Dnve 
Thru Job Fatr 'lbur Input Is Neededl Jobapaloo:za Virtual Recruitment Fair ... 

usiness Employment Skills Team, LWIA4 
ovombet 30 at 10:04 AM • 0 

Go visit Kerri Hicks today at the Bureau County Metro Center for their Veteran's Fair! Learn about 
the resources that BEST, Inc and many other agencies have to offer. The fair goes from 10 am to 
12 pm! 

19 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



WOI� Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4 
.., ., Novemb!:r 22 al t0:54 AM• 0 

BEST, Inc. will be closed Thursday, November 23rd and 
Friday, November 24th. 

=Ill 
Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4

., Novemb�r 17 at 11:27 AM· 0 

!! Job Opportunity !! 

3 shares 

McKeown International Inc. is looking for a Generalist. Please see complete information below! 

NOWHIJtlHG 

11 

20 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



=� Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4
1

1 ,, November 15 at 1;.45 PM ·0 

If your company is interested in learning how apprenticeship programs can assist you with 
recruitment, training and retention contact Dianna at 815-640-9406. 

� 

NOVEMBER 13-19, 2023 

\ - Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4 
• / November9ot8:18AM·0 

BEST, Inc. hosted a Veteran's Event on November 9, 2023 at the Oregon BEST Office. 

Business Employment Skills Team, Inc. (BEST, Inc.) will be hosted a Veterans Open House on 
Thursday, November 9, 2023 at the Oregon BEST Office. Jack Kromer, IDES Veterans Career 
Coach (VCC), was on hand to speak to Veterans. Those in attendance were given information from 
the Goodwill Veteran Career Resources Program and other resources for Veterans. Luz Marie 
Gilkey, Veterans Assistance Commission of Ogle County attended this event 

Pictured left to right are: Tammy Nehrkom, BEST, Jack Kromer of IDES and Luz Marie Gilkey, 
Veterans Assistance Commission of Ogle County. 

' 

(WORK 

Worl<s! OneStOPCente 

n Illinois Work�/ 1;'!r "'ft-·ft· 

Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4 

November 9 at 3:00 PM • 0 
••• 

In honor of our veterans, the Business Employment Skills Team will be closed Friday, November 

10th. Please be sure to thank a veteran for their service. 

00 You and 2 others 1 share 

21 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



woaQ Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4 
Novemb•r 9 al 12:05 PM • 0 

Sunday, November 12 

11 am -1 

Chllf CookOff 

Gift C.-d Extravllganu Drawing 

Raffles 

Tours of SU 

Now In our 12th year! In 2022, we raised over $25,000 to support Streator 
Unlmited's services to aduls with disabilities. 

Gift card EXltllvaganza llckets now 
on sale at Streator Unllmitedlllll 

tW
_ 
a Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4 

" _, NO\-embef-9atS::54AM·0 

�Streator 
� Unlimited, Inc. 

BEST, INC. RECOGNIZES NATIONAL APPRENTICESHIP WEEK 
Earn While You Leam 

Business Employment Skills Team, Inc. (BEST) announces that November 13th through November 
19th is National Apprenticeship Week. lo its ninth year, National Apprenticeship Week (NAW) is a : 
nationwide celebration established by the U.S. Department of Labor to bring together leading 
business, labor, education, and other critical partners to showcase the impact apprenticeship 
programs have on closing the U.S. skills gap for the American workforce. Apprenticeship is an 
industry-driven. high-quality career pathway in which workers can obtain paid work experience, 
classroom instruction, and a transferable credential while job creators develop and prepare their 
future workforce. Apprenticeship is a flexible training model that can be customized to meet the 
needs of every business and industry. Apprenticeship programs provide flexible training models 
that can be customized to meet the needs of every business and industry. Dianna Schuler, 
Business Service Manager for BEST, Inc. said "According to the US Department of Labor the 
retention rate for employees in a Registered Apprenticeship Program is 91% • Schuler went on 
to say "the average return on investment to employers is S1.40 for every S1.00 spent on training 
an apprentice." For more information on how your company could benefit from an apprenticeship 
program contact Dianna Schuler at 815-640-9406 or email her at dianna_schuler@best-inc.org. 

� 

APPRENTICESHIP WEEK 
NOVEMBER 13·19, 2023 -L 

22 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



woRR Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4 
• Nov•mber 9 at 8:18 AM· 13 

� 

APPRENTICESHIP WEEK 
NOVEMBER 13-19, 2023 

(M Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4 
\. .,, N�ber 7 • 0 

Morrison Institute of Technology and BEST, Inc. partnered to develop an IT internship at the 
college. During his time as a Morrison Tech student Travis Null built and reconfigured a business
critical PC for the college, designed middle school STEM activities using Arduino Micro Controllers 
and C++ programming for 7th Grade Experience Days. and assisted and supported Dual 
Enrollment instruction for area high school students. 
Pictured are from left to right. Dr. Robert Anderson, Travis Null and Scott Connelly 

23 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



;;;";i Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4 
,. ., Novem�r 6 • 0 

Check out the newest Getting to Work Podcast Episode 
E69: Frame of Mind for Success: How to Overcome Limiting Beliefs and Achieve Your Goals 

This episode features a conversation with entrepreneur coach Kim Ades as she provides insights 
on identifying limiting blind spots, taking responsibility for thoughts, feelings, and behaviors, and 
pivoting focus to move in the right direction. Kim shares practical tips on overcoming common 
struggles like isolation and self-criticism. Discover how to unlock your potential through self
coaching. 
www.nciworks.org 

Google: 
https://www.google.com/podcasts ... 
Apple Link: https://itunes.apple.com/ .. /getting-to-work/id 1423132481 ... 

Spotify: https://open.spotify.com/show/1 iiCVP247fpoxzZS2hgX60 ... 

..--- . -. .... 

(
1A'i: Business Employment Skllls Team, LWIA4
.__ , November 6 • 0 

... 

____ ,_ .......i--1---+-om
----'--+-----1 =.".=• __ ,...._

.SUI 11 .. -1 .. .....,.. QIWW.t .. ���Wft.<Ml. 

1--1---+-oc-�-1---'--+
----

-1:;::;:.,::,.::.-:=.=:::_=.�-
� =-..._ ____ _ OCTIO l11.11-IN 

i--1---+-
om
"l'l>lblql""

.,..,.
c--c-1------1=-=.._.,..,..,....,._

� �JU CMWN.,.�t,tflil(Nt. .... 
1--1---1--"==<-,!.------1--.\l�ti,llt ......... .,.. 

w • ..,...,"...,._.__ 
MCS 11ui-hw 

24 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



WIii Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4
1. ., October 31 • 0 

Start your Career with the Illinois Department of Corrections! Please see the information below! 

Work for the 1111001s Depanment of 

CORRECTIONS 
Sltlrt/119 Salor;y: COT $52,512' CTOT $S6,BJZ • n11nunl/y 

'"ith lncrffte•pon romp/ti/on ofprobot/onory /1<rlod 
.. , .. 11rst1t111JlfllfJ.NYLINCIMI ..... I SCIINlll 111: 

113 ll Bl 2, Dl11on. ll 61021 

Wllllt atl�•JCft-,llrC 

Clrreclloaal omcerTrallee/Conecll111I Treatment OlllclrTnlllee 

Tal:Sil1l11:H•·HI• 
11##,,,_II/JIII//Jl#ll---atllll#SI� 
CDtlllCtCe trllSc gOfflcefor111n1iauv .. •11dP rt 

20-185-9921
Apptkub ..st be• US dt.ltt• er utJoa� oftllt Uaktd.S�tes.11 �nHt U.S. rffklult er a 

rtifflffd•Utt1 'Iii ho lt Hthoriud r. work In the Ualtrd SUtet., •111• lt at le;ut l.lyt:ar:t .W w\ih a 
tllsh�tH .... ;aerGto 1'41'11,atkl• �.1ilktt1n, 

tTOT ,.,ru &N:ktor., °"'",.. (tW,.., /u.uln-, r,,..,.,,Seda, .. � P,A)'thfl,.,,.,. .,.,.,.,, ndd 

............................. ,..,......._. .............. __.._ .. .....,._ .. .,_._ ....
,....�.l'N\"Mi, ...... --==-�.:-=..... ....... --..._ • .....__ 

,;;} Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4 
• October 26 • 0 

The Illinois Department of Employment Services (IDES) hosted a State of Illinois Job Fair on 
Wednesday, October 26, 2023 at the Sterling IDES Office. 

25 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



�ii, Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4 
\, , Octo�r25·0 

IWNOISJOBS2WE8.COM 

Careers at State of Illinois 

0 Jo Ann Johnson 

,Ii, Like 

1 share 

Q Comment 

Write a comment. .. 

tfiii� Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4
�-··. Octob•r 19 • 0 

1¢ Share 

Kishwaukee College hosted an Open House at their new state-of-the-art welding lab on Tuesday. 
Those in attendance had the opportunity to learn more about Kish's Welding Technology 
program including their state-of-the-art welding booths. 

fw;a; Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4 
�, October 19 • 0 

GOODWILL INDUSTRIES 

g Expungement and 
Sealing Resource Fair �ad Cities Fall Success F, 

gaadwill 

• how a recor 
1•d, de1troy 

federal recor 
Id• lnformotlo 
ond 1eal1 ond 
speak with an 

th• comm 

nosday, Nowmbor 08 2023 (lj 
Holfda/j 

Transition!,. Solcllen' 

�1;\l\S Amerrc;,:;jobCenter· Iowa WOR,

(a� Business Employment Skills Team, LWIA4 
,, Octo�r 16 • 0 

JOB OPPORTUNITY 

D&M Landscaping is looking for help to finish the year prior to snowfall. If you have a valid 
drivers license and are interested in outdoor work you can apply at D&M landscaping located at 
100 Northview Dr in Spring Valley between 8:00am-4:00pm Monday, Tuesday or Thursday. 

26 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



;i;� Business Employment Skllls Team, LWIA4 

a"d Business Employment Skllls Team, LWIA4 
October 16 •0 

Nice group of area resources turned out for the Goodwill Veterans Job Fair and Resource Fair. 

:ioii Business Employment Skllls Team, LWIA4 
, ., October16·� 

We at BEST would like to congratulate Kerri Hicks; Career Advisor, BEST, Inc. and John Spencer, 
President and CEO, Starved Rock Media and member of NCI Works for their recent Cornerstone 
Award recognition from Illinois Valley Area Chamber of Commerce. The chamber has stated that 
this award is a "tribute to those individuals who have dedicated themselves to making our 
communities stronger, kinder, and more vibrant." We couldn't agree more. Congratulations Kerri 

and John! 

27 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



Employee Health Insurance Renewal Information 

Employee Health (and Life) Insurance coverage with United Health Care will renew on January 
1, 2024. The current plan that we have with UHC is no longer available, but they did quote us a 
plan that is similar. The plan is somewhat similar to what we already have, but there is an 
increase of out of pocket from $7,750/$10,000 to $8,000/$10,000. 

Listed below is the current and renewal rates with the United Health Care plan we received. You 
can see that we received a 22.5% increase. Although inflation may contribute to a small portion 
of the increase, I suspect that the major cause is due to claims history. Since we did not receive 
our renewal rates until a few weeks ago, United Health Care will honor our current rate for the 
month of January. 

United Health Care (Plan Summary attached) 

Employee 
Employee & Spouse 
Employee & Child 
Employee & Family 

Current Rate 

$1,067.47 
$2,134.94 
$1,974.82 
$3,042.29 

Renewal Rate 

$1,308.45 
$2,616.90 
$2,420.63 
$3,042.29 

I did secured quotes from our agent and another local agent to see what other options are 
available. The quotes that we received were from Blue Cross/Blue Shield and Health Alliance. 
The Blue Cross/Blue Shield provided a narrow network which would not include all areas of the 
local workforce area. The Health Alliance plan was more expensive than the renewal rates with 
United Health Care. 

After a review of the insurance plans and our agency budget with Carrie and Jessica, we are 
proposing to accept the renewal rates with United Health Care. As I mentioned, we just received 
the renewal rates a few weeks ago and time does not allow for a thorough search of the market 
for comparable plans for this year. I have talked with another agent about starting look for other 
options for our employee health plan. 

As a reminder, staff currently pay $40.00/month ($20.00 for each pay during the month but not 
to exceed $40.00/month) for their individual Health benefits. 

28 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



t»j UnitedHealthcare·

Company Name: BUSINESS 
EMPLOYEMENT SKILLS TEAM 
INC 
IL-61348 
# of Eligibles: 
SIC Code: 7361 

Rewards 

Broker: WILLIAM T PAYTON 

Broker Phone: 8152244242 

1 Refer to the benefit summary if referrals are required 
2No out of network benefits available 
lRefer to the benefit summary for the full PCP and Specialist cost share information 

Agency:

Agency Phone: N/ A 

----··-- ___ j_ __ 

UHC Sales Rep: Wade Johnson 

UHC Sales Rep Phone: N/ A 

h,: 

Medical Plan Summary/Rates 

General Agent: MUTUAL MED INS SERVICES 

LLC 

General Agent Phone: N/ A 

Renewal Effective Date: 
01/01/2024 

Creation Date: 12/2/2023, 9:07:12 
AM CST 

Member Group ID: 1562877 

--'-----· --- - -- - - . 

The rates and benefits included within this proposal are for general information and discussion purposes only and not valid unless approved by UnitedHealthcare. This rate quote Is not an offer or a guarantee of coverage. The rates quoted are applicable to the plan design selected. We reserve the 
right to modify your rates in the event your plan design must be modified as a result of any change, modification or clarification in law, including the Patient Protection andAffordable Care Act. This group should not. under any circumstances, cancel its existing coverage unless and until coverage is 
ottered by us and final rates have been accepted by and initlal premium paid by the group. Final ratel) are determined by UnttedHcalthcare's underwntlng guidelines and final enrollment. The insurance policy, not general rateo and descriptions in this Web site or printed output, wlll form the con1ract 

between the insured and UnitedHealthcare. and the Certificate of Coverage issued to the subscriber will provide the legal description of coverage. 

Page 1 of 15 

29 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



January 1 

January 15 

February 19 

March 29 

May27 

July 4 

September 2 

November 11 

November 28 

December 25 

BEST, Inc,. 
Business Employment Skills Team 

Serving Northwest Central Illinois 

www.best-inc.org 

ILLI� 
kN t®• wor e 

• CENTER

,,----..
A proud partner of the AmericanJobCenter'network 

HOLIDAY SCHEDULE 

Holiday 

New Year's Day 

Martin Luther King Day 

President's Day 

Spring Holiday 

Memorial Day 

Independence Day 

Labor Day 

Veteran's Day 

Thanksgiving 

Christmas 

Date Observed for 2024 

Monday, January 1 

Monday, January 15 

Monday, February 19 

Friday, March 29 

Monday, May 27 

Thursday, July 4 

Monday, September 2 

Monday, November 11 

Thursday, November 28 
Friday, November 29 

Tuesday, December 24 
Wednesday, December 25 

30 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



FISCAL UPDATE 

September-October 2023 

• PY 23 WIOA expenditure ratios:
o PY 22 WIOA - Fully Expended.
o PY23 WIOA Adult/DW 50% direct training requirement at 10/31/23

■ Projected at 61 %.
o Required Work Based Learning expenditure ratio at 10/31/23

■ PY 22 30% Final
■ PY 23 is projected at 28%.

• Grant 24-071004: Supplemental State Funding 7/1/23-6/30/24

o Funding Expected: $452,153.39

31 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



Business Employment Skills Team Inc. 

TOTAL GRANT PLANNED CARRY 
INCOME FORWARD 

WIOA $ 3,708,905.17 $ 406,052.74 
OTHER $ 109,836.17 $ 

$ 3,818,741.34 

50% DIRECT TRAINING Requirement 
Adult Training Exp $ 946,685.07 
DW Training Exp $ 332,295.13 
Adult Total Exp $ 1,457,572.26 
DW Total Exp $ 634,495.69 
Training% 61.13% 

80% Obligation Requirement 

Adult Obligation% 156.89% 
DW Obligation% 45.68% 
Y outh Obligation % 82.87% 
Total Funds Obligation% 85.37% 

22-681004
23�681004 BUDGET _ TRANSFER 

ADMIN $ 411,216.73 $ -

ADULT $ 1,065,950.67 $ -

DW $ 1,246,039.29 $ -

YOUTH $ 985,698.48 $ -

LWIA04 
PV23 

Total Expenditures 

$ 1,303,123.95 

$ 4,745.79 

$ 1,307,869.74 

WIOA 

PERIOD ENDING: 

Projected 

Total Exp & Obi Balance 

$ 3,302,852.43 $ 406,052.74 

$ 109,567.36 $ 268.81 

$ 3,412,419.79 $ 406,321.55 

50% Youth-In Limitation 
PY22 Y I% 16.81% 
PV22 V O% 
PV23 Y I% 

PV23 V O% 

83.19% 

24.67% 
75.33% 

20% WBL Requirement 

PY22 Total Exp 729,341.78 
PV22 Total WBL 219268.65 

PV22 % 
PV23 Total Exp 
PV23 Total WBL 

PY23% 

30% 
565,946.20 
159,357.04 

28% 

20% PLANNED CARRY TOTAL FUNDS TOTAL 
FORWARD AVAILABLE EXP+OBL 

$ 55,491.20 $ 355,725.53 342,040.02 

$ 137,665.20 $ 928,285.47 1,457,572.26 

$ 225,173.60 $ 1,020,865.69 634,495.69 

$ 136,584.20 849,114.28 868,744.46 

10/31/2023 

PROJECTED 
BALANCE 

$ 13,685.51 

$ (529,286.79) 

$ 386,370.00 

$ (19,630.18) 

$ 3,708,905.17 $ 554,914.20 $ 3,153,990.97 3,302,852.43 $ (148,861.46) 

23-112004
BUDGET TRANSFER 

Overhead $ 45,101.17 $ 

Projects $ 64,735.00 $ 

$ 109,836.17 $ 

24-071004
BUDGET 

Overhead $ 

Projects $ 

TRANSFER 
- I$
- IS

-

-

-

. 

Apprenticeship Expansion 
20% PLANNED CARRY TOTAL FUNDS TOTAL 
FORWARD AVAILABLE EXP+OBL 

$ - $ 45,101.17 44,832.36 

$ - $ 64,735.00 64,735.00 

PROJECTED 
BALANCE 

$ 268.81 
-

$ $ 109,836.17 $ 109,567.36 $ 268.81 

Supplemental 
20% PLANNED CARRY TOTAL FUNDS TOTAL 
FORWARD AVAILABLE EXP+OBL. 

I$ . IS . I 
I$ . IS . I 

. 

. 

PROJECTED 
BALANCE 

$ 

$ 

. 

. 

WAITING FOR FINAL APPROVAL FROM DCEO 

$ $ 

32 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



999-NONE

REVENUES 

REVENUES 

22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 

23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WIOA 

Total REVENUES 

Total REVENUES 

BUSINESS EMPLOYMENT SKILLS TEAM, INC. 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

From 9/1/2023 Through 10/31/2023 

Total Budget Variance • Percent Total Budget 

Total Budget - Original Current Period Actual Current Year Actual Original Remaining - Original 

0.00 479,250.00 922,750.00 922,750.00 0.00% 

_Q,_Q_0 108,000.00 108,000.00 108,000.00 0.00% 

_Q,_Q_0 587,250.00 1,030,750.00 1,030,750.00 0.00% 

_Q,_Q_0 587,250.00 1,030,750.00 1,030,750.00 0.00% 

33 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



ADM IN - ADMINISTRATION 

EXPENDITURES 

INDIRECT 

22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 

Total INDIRECT 

Total EXPENDITURES 

BUSINESS EMPLOYMENT SKILLS TEAM, INC. 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

From 9/1/2023 Through 10/31/2023 

Total Budget Variance Percent Total Budget 

Total Budget - Original Current Period Actual Current Year Actual _____ O_r�ig�in_al Remaining - Original 

...Q&0 69,195.95 128,785.96 (128,785.96) 0.00% 

...Q&0 69,195.95 128,785.96 (128,785.96) 0.00% 

...Q&0 69,195.95 128,785.96 (128,785.96) 0.00% 

34 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



BUSINESS EMPLOYMENT SKILLS TEAM, INC. 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

From 9/1/2023 Through 10/31/2023 

ADULT- ADULT 

Total Budget Variance Percent Total Budget 
Total Budget - Original Current Period Actual Current Year Actual Original Remaining - Original 

REVENUES 

REVENUES 
22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA Jh!!.0 ...!!!:.!_4 ...!!!:.!_4 ...!l!:.!_4 0.00% 

Total REVENUES Jh!!.0 ...!!!:.!_4 ...!l!:.!_4 ...!l!:.!_4 0.00% 

Total REVENUES Jh!!.0 ...!l!:.!_4 18.14 ...!l!:.!_4 0.00% 

EXPENDITURES 

INDIRECT 

2 2 -681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 46,563.72 140,636.40 {140,636.40) 0.00% 

23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WIOA JhQ_0 44,686.43 44,686.43 (44,686.43) 0.00% 

Total INDIRECT 0.00 91,250.15 185,322.83 (18S,322.83) 0.00% 

DIRECT TRAINING 

22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 127,237.11 223,126.02 (223,126.02) 0.00% 

23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WJOA Jh!!.0 225,968.25 225,968.25 (225,968.25) 0.00% 

Total DIRECT TRAINING JhQ_0 353,205.36 449,094.27 {449,094.27) 0.00% 

Total EXPENDITURES JhQ_0 444,455.51 634,417.10 (634,417.10) 0.00% 

ADUL T-OJT- WIOA ADULT 

ON-THE-JOB-TRAINING 

Total Budget Variance Percent Total Budget 
Total Budget - Original Current Period Actual Current Year Actual Original Remaining - Original 

EXPENDITURES 

INDIRECT 
22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 492.41 2,187.93 (2,187.93) 0.00% 

23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WIOA Jh!!.0 280.73 280.73 (280.73) 0.00% 

Total INDIRECT 0.00 773.14 2,468.66 (2,468.66) 0.00% 

ON-THE-JOB TRAINING 
22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WJOA 0.00 2,479.63 2,479.63 (2,479.63) 0.00% 

23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WIOA JhQ_0 1,682.12 1,682.12 (1,682.12) 0.00% 

Total ON-THE-JOB TRAINING Jh!!.0 4,161.75 4,161.75 (4,161.75) 0.00% 

Total EXPENDITURES Jh!!.0 4,934.89 6,630.41 {6,630.41) 0.00% 

ADULT-WBL - WIA ADULT 

WORK BASED LEARNING 

Total Budget Variance Percent Total Budget 
Total Budget - Original Current Period Actual Current Year Actual Original Remaining - Original 

EXPENDITURES 

INDIRECT 

23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WIOA JhQ_0 �4 55.64 (55.64) 0.00% 

Total INDIRECT 0.00 55.64 55.64 (55.64) 0.00% 

WORK BASED LEARNING 
22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 2,264.91 7,584.06 {7,584.06) 0.00% 

23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WJOA Jh!!.0 2,817.76 2,817.76 (2,817.76) 0.00% 

Total WORK BASED LEARNING Jh!!.0 5,082.67 10,401.82 (10,401.82) 0.00% 

Total EXPENDITURES JhQ_0 5,138.31 10,457.46 (10,457.46) 0.00% 

35 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



BUSINESS EMPLOYMENT SKILLS TEAM, INC. 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

From 9/1/2023 Through 10/31/2023 

OW - DISLOCATED WORKER 

Total Budget Variance • Percent Total Budget 
Total Budget - Original Current Period Actual Current Year Actual Original Remaining - Original 

REVENUES 
REVENUES 

23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WJOA J!.,Q_0 ...!9.,,2_3 ...!9.,,2_3 ....ill.2? 0.00% 
Total REVENUES J!.,Q_0 ...!9.,,2_3 ...!9.,,2_3 ....ill.2? 0.00% 

Total REVENUES J!.,Q_0 ...!9.,,2_3 ...!9.,,2_3 ....ill.2? 0.00% 

EXPENDITURES 
INDIRECT 

22-681004 WJOA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 812.37 55,185.37 (55,185.37) 0.00% 
23-681004 WJOA FORMULA 23WIOA J!.,Q_0 50,226.61 50,226.61 (50,226.61) 0.00% 

Total INDIRECT 0.00 51,038.98 105,411.98 (105,411.98) 0.00% 
DIRECT TRAINING 

22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 12,606.04 25,577.30 (25,577.30) 0.00% 
23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WIOA J!.,Q_0 43,219.62 43,219.62 (43,219.62) 0.00% 

Total DIRECT TRAINING J!.,Q_0 55,825.66 68,796.92 (68,796.92) 0.00% 
Total EXPENDITURES J!.,Q_0 106,864.64 174,208.90 {174,208.90) 0.00% 

OW-IWT- WIOA OW 

INCUMB ENT WORKER 

TRAINING 

Total Budget Variance • Percent Total Budget 
Total Budget - Original Current Period Actual Current Year Actual Original Remaining - Original 

EXPENDITURES 
INDIRECT 

22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WJOA 0.00 66.68 3,058.91 (3,058.91) 0.00% 
23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WIOA J!.,Q_0 2,218.52 2,218.52 (2,218.52) 0.00% 

Total INDIRECT 0.00 2,285.20 5,277.43 (5,277.43) 0.00% 
INCUMBENT WORKERS 

22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 21,641.78 31,120.53 (31,120.53) 0.00% 
23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WIOA J!.,Q_0 42,670.55 42,670.55 (42,670.55) 0.00% 

Total INCUMBENT WORKERS J!.,Q_0 64,312.33 73,791.08 (73,791.08) 0.00% 
Total EXPENDITURES J!.,Q_0 66,597.53 79,068.51 (79,068.51) 0.00% 

OW-OJT- OISLOCA TEO 

WORKER ON-THE-JOB-

TRAINING 

Total Budget Variance • Percent Total Budget 
Total Budget - Original Current Period Actual Current Year Actual Original Remaining - Original 

EXPENDITURES 
INDIRECT 

22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 17.55 600.35 (600.35) 0.00% 
23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WIOA J!.,Q_0 573.31 573.31 (573.31) 0.00% 

Total INDIRECT 0.00 590.86 1,173.66 (1,173.66) 0.00% 
ON-THE-JOB TRAINING 

22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 0.00 4,566.49 (4,566.49) 0.00% 
23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WJOA J!.,Q_0 2,195.65 2,195.65 {2,195.65) 0.00% 

Total ON-THE-JOB TRAINING J!.,Q_0 2,195.65 6,762.14 (6,762.14) 0.00% 
Total EXPENDITURES J!.,Q_0 2,786.51 7,935.80 {7,935.80) 0.00% 

36 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



BUSINESS EMPLOYMENT SKILLS TEAM, INC. 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

From 9/1/2023 Through 10/31/2023 

YI - YOUTH IN SCHOOL

Total Budget Variance • Percent Total Budget 

Total Budget - Original Current Period Actual Current Year Actual Original Remaining - Original 

REVENUES 

REVENUES 

22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA _Q,Q_0 .1:.1.6 .1:.1.6 .1:.1.6 0.00% 

Total REVENUES _Q,Q_0 .1:.1.6 .1:.1.6 .1:.1.6 0.00% 

Total REVENUES 0.00 .1:.1.6 2.46 .1:.1.6 0.00% 

EXPENDITURES 

INDIRECT 

22-681004 W!OA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 4,250.44 12,106.81 {12,106.81) 0.00% 

23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23W!OA _Q,Q_0 7,191.41 7,191.41 (7,191.41) 0.00% 

Total INDIRECT 0.00 11,441.85 19,298.22 (19,298.22) 0.00% 

DIRECT TRAINING 

22-681004 W!OA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 54.46 54.46 (54.46) 0.00% 

23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WIOA 0.00 620.00 620.00 (620.00) 0.00% 

Total DIRECT TRAINING _Q,Q_0 674.46 674.46 (674.46) 0.00% 

Total EXPENDITURES _Q,Q_0 12,116.31 19,972.68 (19,972.68) 0.00% 

Yl-WBL - WIA /SY WORK

BASED LEARNING 

Total Budget Variance • Percent Total Budget 
Total Budget - Original Current Period Actual Current Year Actual Original Remaining - Original 

EXPENDITURES 

INDIRECT 

22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 82.23 5,116.49 (5,116.49) 0.00% 

23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23W!OA _Q,Q_0 6,121.29 6,121.29 (6,121.29) 0.00% 

Total INDIRECT 0.00 6,203.52 11,237.78 (11,237.78) 0.00% 

DIRECT TRAINING 

22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 _Q,Q_0 50.00 (SO.OD) 0.00% 

Total DIRECT TRAINING 0.00 0.00 50.00 (50.00) 0.00% 

WORK BASED LEARNING 

22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 360.67 16,728.08 (16,728.08) 0.00% 

23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23W!OA _Q,Q_0 14,240.19 14,240.19 {14,240.19) 0.00% 

Total WORK BASED LEARNING _Q,Q_0 14,600.86 30,968.27 (30,968.27) 0.00% 

Total EXPENDITURES _Q,Q_0 20,804.38 42,2S6.05 ( 42,2S6.05) 0.00% 

37 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



BUSINESS EMPLOYMENT SKILLS TEAM, INC. 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

From 9/1/2023 Through 10/31/2023 

YO - YOUTH OUT OF SCHOOL

Total Budget Variance Percent Total Budget 
Total Budget - Original Current Period Actual Current Year Actual Original Remaining - Original 

REVENUES 
REVENUES 

22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA __Q_,Q_0 _Li3 _Li3 _Li3 0.00% 
Total REVENUES __Q_,Q_0 _Li3 _Li3 _Li3 0.00% 

Total REVENUES __Q_,Q_0 _Li3 _Li3 _Li3 0.00% 

EXPENDITURES 
INDIRECT 

22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 29,010.45 100,288.70 (100,288.70) 0.00% 
23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WIOA __Q_,Q_0 17,983.02 17,983.02 (17,983.02) 0.00% 

Total INDIRECT 0.00 46,993.47 118,271.72 (118,271.72) 0.00% 
DIRECT TRAINING 

22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 20,478.51 37,390.50 (37,390.50) 0.00% 
23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WIOA __Q_,Q_0 4,321.23 4,321.23 (4,321.23) 0.00% 

Total DIRECT TRAINING __Q_,Q_0 24,799.74 41,711.73 (41,711.73) 0.00% 
Total EXPENDITURES __Q_,Q_0 71,793.21 159,983.45 (159,983.45) 0.00% 

YO-WBL - WIA OSY WORK

BASED LEARNING 

Total Budget Variance • Percent Total Budget 
Total Budget - Original Current Period Actual Current Year Actual Original Remaining - Original 

EXPENDITURES 
INDIRECT 

22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 122.60 6,398.83 (6,398.83) 0.00% 
23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23W!OA __Q_,Q_0 6,903.30 6,903.30 (6,903.30) 0.00% 

Total INDIRECT 0.00 7,025.90 13,302.13 (13,302.13) 0.00% 
DIRECT TRAINING 

23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23WIOA __Q_,Q_0 2Q&O 2Q&O �) 0.00% 
Total DIRECT TRAINING 0.00 50.00 50.00 (50.00) 0.00% 

WORK BASED LEARNING 
22-681004 WIOA FORMULA 22WIOA 0.00 271.19 13,293.33 (13,293.33) 0.00% 
23-681004 WIOA FORMULA 23W!OA __Q_,Q_0 12,762.17 12,762.17 (12,762.17) 0.00% 

Total WORK BASED LEARNING __Q_,Q_0 13,033.36 26,055.50 (26,055.50) 0.00% 
Total EXPENDITURES __Q_,Q_0 20,109.26 39,407.63 (39,407.63) 0.00% 

38 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



EXPENDITURES 

INDIRECT 

Total EXPENDITURES 

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 

BUSINESS EMPLOYMENT SKILLS TEAM, INC. 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

From 9/1/2023 Through 10/31/2023 

23APP- APPRENTICESHIP EXPANSION 

Percent Total 
Budget 

Total Budget$ - Current Period Current Year Total Budget$ Remaining -
____ O_ri�g_in_al _____ A_ct_ua_l _____ A_ct_u _al Variance - Original ___ O_ri�gi_na_l 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

3,644.86 

3,644.86 

(3,644.86) 

3,644.86 

3,644.86 

(3,644.86) 

(3,644.86) ___ o_.0_0°_1/o 

(3,644.86) ___ o_.0_0°_1/o 

(3,644.86) ___ o_.0_0°_1/o 

39 BEST Board of Directors 
December 18, 2023



Chief Elected Officials for 

Workforce Investment Area #4 
Serving Bureau, Carroll, Ogle, Jo Daviess, LaSalle, Lee, Putnam and Whiteside Counties 

TO: 

MEMORANDUM 

Kerwin Paris, Bureau County Board Representative 
Michael McEmery, LaSalle County Board Representative 
Steven Malavolti, Putnam County Board Representative 
Chris Flikkema, Carroll County Board Representative 
LaDon Trost, Jo Daviess County Board Chairman 
Keane Hudson, Lee County Board Representative 
Wayne Reising, Ogle County Board Representative 

FROM: James C. Duffy, Chairman 
Chief Elected Officials / Whiteside County Board Representative 

DATE: December 12, 2023 

RE: Meeting Notic� 

The Chief Elected Officials (CEO) of Local Workforce Investment #4 will meet on Monday, 
October 23, 2023 following the BEST, Inc. Hoard of Directors' Meeting. 

Enclosed please find the Agenda and materials for this meeting. 

If you have any questions regarding these documents, please give Carrie a call at 815-224-0369. 

If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Jo Ann Johnson at 815-224-0375. Thank 
you. 

cc: Marshann Entwhistle, Bureau County Board Chair 
Don Jensen, LaSalle County Board Chair 
John Finfrock, Ogle County Board Chair 
Charles Lenkaitis, Putnam County Board Chair 
Joseph Payette, Carroll County Board Chair 

815 N. Orlando Smith Avenue, Room C328, Oglesby, IL 61348 
815-224-0375



Chief Elected Officials Meeting 

To follow the BEST, Inc. Board of Director's Meeting 

December 18, 2023 

Approximately 7:00 p.m. 

Lee County Board Conference Room 

Old Lee County Courthouse, Dixon, IL 

or 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https ://us02web.zoom.us/j/89563520031 

Meeting ID: 895 6352 0031 

Dial by your location 

• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

Meeting ID: 895 6352 0031

AGENDA 

Call to Order (James Duffy, Chainnan) 

Roll Call 

Approval of October 23, 2023 Meeting Minutes (Page 1) (Action Item) 

Business Meeting 

• Election of Officer(s) (Action Item)

Current Officers: Chainnan (James Duffy) 
Vice-Chairman (Chris Flikkema) 
Secretary (Wayne Reising) 

• Application for the Trade Case Management Grant (Carrie Folken) (Action Item)

• Pre-Planning Guide PY 2024 MOU Modification (Page 3) (Informational)

• Request approval to post the PY 24 Regional & Local Plans for Public Review (Action Item)

• One Stop Center Reopening Plan (Carrie Folken) (Action Item)

• Request approval for any grant modifications (if necessary) (Carrie Folken) (Possible Action
Item)

Other Business 

• Meeting Schedule for 2024
February 26 
April 22 
June 24 



August 26 
October 28 
December 23 

Public Comments 

Adjournment 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C53734C-65F5-4A0D-833E-8E288C7F4897 

Chief Elected Officials 
(Hybrid) Meeting Minutes 

October 23, 2023 

The Chief Elected Officials meeting was called to order at 6:59 p.m. by Chairman James Duffy. Roll 
Call was taken. 

Name Present Absent Name 
James Duffy X Michael McEmery 
Chris Flikkema Proxy Kerwin Paris 
Keane Hudson X Wayne Reising 
Steven Malavolti Proxy LaDon Trost 

PROXY: Chris Flikkema to Jim Duffy, Steve Malavolti to Kerwin Paris 

OTHERS PRESENT: Carrie Folken, Jo Ann Johnson, Jessica Green 

Approval of Meeting Minutes 

Present Absent 
X 
X 

X 

X 

Keane Hudson motioned to approve the August 28, 2023 Meeting Minutes. Motion was seconded by 
Kerwin Paris. Roll Call vote was taken. 

Name 
James Duffy 
Chris Flikkema 
Keane Hudson 

Steven Malavolti 
Motion carried. 

Business Meeting 

Yes 
X 

Proxy 
X 

Proxy 

CEO Agreement Amendment 

No Name Yes No 
Michael McEmery X 
Kerwin Paris X 
Wayne Reising X 
LaDon Trost 

Jim presented the CEO Agreement Amendment that was submitted to members on October 4, 2023. 
Carrie told members that when the Amendment was revised and approved at the February 2023 CEO 
Meeting she failed to reconstruct how private sector board members are selected. She told members that 
the original Agreement was done when the consolidation of the two local workforce areas took place 
and it does not represent how the process actually works. Wayne Reising motioned to approve the CEO 
Agreement Amendment as presented. Motion was seconded by Kerwin Paris. Roll Call vote was taken. 

Name Yes No Name Yes No 
James Duffy X Michael McEmery X 
Chris Flikkema Proxy Kerwin Paris X 
Keane Hudson X Wayne Reising X 
Steven Malavolti Proxy LaDon Trost 

Motion carried. 

1 CEO Meeting 
December 18, 2023 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C53734C-65F5-4A0D-833E-8E288C7F4897 

L WIB Recertification Update / Membership Update 

Carrie reported that the L WIB Recertification has been completed and NCI Works continues to have a 
business majority led board. She told members that she will be looking for a new member in January to 
replace Cary Robbins as he is retiring. Additionally, Carrie said that NCI Works will accept a 
resignation from Abby Farrell. Carrie told members that she has some prospects from the Carroll and Jo 
Daviess Counties. Carrie noted that once a resignation is accepted by NCI Works, the CEOs have 90 
days to appoint a new members. 

PY 23 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Update 

Carrie informed members that a few corrections were needed to the PY 23 MOU. She told members 
that a copy of the Letter along with the Required Modification table was included with the meeting 
materials. Carrie said that the corrections were clerical in nature and were submitted accordingly. 

Request approval for any grant modifications (if necessary) 

• .earrie said that no approval was needed for any grant modification at this time.

Other Business

Jim informed members that the next CEO Meeting will be on Monday, December 18, 2023 following
the BEST Board of Director's Meeting. Location will be announced closer to the date.

Public Comments

None

Adjournment

With th�re being no further business; K;erwin Paris motioned to adjourn. Motion was seconded by
Wayne Reising. Motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m.

Approved by: 

G

DocuSlgned by: 

()J tA1., teusilA1 
2':jBC1E378E4EO ... 

Wayne Reising 
Secretary 

Jo Ann Johnson 

2 CEO Meeting 
December 18, 2023 



PRE-PROGRAM YEAR PLANNING FORM FOR LWIA 4 

PROGRAM YEAR 2024 

In preparation for annual MOU and budget negotiations each program year, it is imp01iant to begin 

planning each fall to meet various WIOA benchmarks and deadlines. To help ensure each local 

area is in the best position to fulfill all WIOA requirements related to submission of MOUs and 

one-stop operating budgets within the allotted timeframe for the upcoming program year, please 

complete and submit the following fonn to CWD-wioaplan@siu.edu by December 31. 

Included at the bottom of this form is a waiver request section that must be completed if the local 

workforce innovation board seeks a waiver from a specific provision of the Governor's Guidelines 

- evision 4 or PY 2024 Supplemental Guidance. If no waiver requests are known by December

31, then local areas should request any applicable waivers with the April 15 submittal of the

preliminary budget and MOU negotiation Report of Outcomes.

For technical assistance in completing this fonn, please contact Mike Baker at 

Michael.Baker@illinois.gov. Additionally: 

1. To ensure all required partners in the local area are aware of the submitted contents of this
form, the form must be circulated to all required partners. Please indicate here the date by

which the preliminary budget will be shared with all required partners: 1/26/2024

2. Please identify the lead negotiator for the MOU negotiations in your L WIA.
Joel Torbeck

Joel_torbeck@best-inc.org

815-640-9405

Business Employment Skills Team, Inc.

3. Please identify the impartial budget negotiator in your L WIA. If the local workforce board
chair and required partners in the local area determine that the individual(s) designated by
the local workforce board chair to lead annual budget negotiations is not impartial, please
complete and submit a waiver request as provided at the bottom of this form and as
described in Section 4 of the Governor's Guidelines - Revision 4.
Jeffrey Marcella

Jeff _marcella@gmail.com

773-391-2546

Non-Profit and Public Sector Consultant

4. Please identify the individual responsible for conducting periodic reconciliation of
budgeted to actual costs in your L WIA.
Jessica Green

Jessica_green@best-inc.org

815-224-0373

3 CEO Meeting 
December 18, 2023 



Enter phone number here 

5. Please identify the frequency at which reconciliation of budgeted to actual costs will occur
in your local area (must occur at least semi-annually).
Semi-annually

Initial Communication with Partners 

6. Using the fillable table below, please submit the proposed schedule for Program Year
MOU and Budget Negotiations, in alignment with the general timeline provided in
Appendix A of the Governor's Guidelines - evision 4 (Use only the rows needed to fully
describe your specific negotiations schedule). Please include:

a. Title of the meeting;
b. What is to be discussed and/or decided in accordance with the timeline below;
c. Whether the meeting is slotted to be in-person or over the phone; and
d. The week and year of the planned date of completion of task.

PRIMARY ACTIVITY IN NEGOTIATIONS 

Initial Communication with Partners 

- -

Pre-Program Year Planning Form submitted to State 

Initial Meeting with Partners (Virtual) 

Distribute draft of MOU and budget in preparation of second 

meeting 

Second Meeting with Partners (Virtual) 

Distribute additional Draft of MOU and Budget to Partners 

Third and final meeting with Partners for MOU and budget 

finalization (Virtual) 

Submit Report of Outcomes and Draft Budget to State 

Submit Final MOU and Budget to State with all signatures 

PY 2023 MOU take effect 

Please insert phone or in-person meeting information 

Please insert phone or in-person meeting information 

Please insert phone or in-person meeting information 

PLANNED DATE OF COMPLETION (WEEK ENDING 

ON A SPECIFIC CALENDAR DATE AND YEAR) 

11/14/2023 

12/31/2023 

1/12/2024 

1/26/2024 

2/9/2024 

2/16/2024 

3/8/2024 

4/15/2024 

5/31/2024 

7/1/2024 

enter elate 

enter elate 

enter elate 

7. D Please select this checkbox if there is a partner agency or individual new to the MOU

negotiations process in your local that would benefit from a WIOA orientation.

8. D Please select this checkbox if the Local Workforce Innovation Area would benefit from

technical assistance on enforcing safety protocols in American Job Centers.

4 CEO Meeting 
December 18, 2023 



SERVICE LOCATIONS 

1. Please list all designated comprehensive one-stop centers, designated affiliate sites or

designated specialized centers, as well as non-designated connection (access) sites in the local

area. The information provided in this section must match the Illinois workNet listings.

coses DESIGNATED DESIGNATED NON-DESIGNATED 
AFFILIATE SITES SPECIALIZED CONNECTION (ACCESS) 

CENTERS SITES 

NCI Works One Stop Click or tap here to Click or tap here to Business Employment Skills 

Center, 1550 First enter text. enter text. Team, Inc., 402 Avenue C, 

Avenue, Ottawa, IL Sterling, IL 61081 

61350 

Click or tap here to Click or tap here to Click ur tnp here to Business Employment Skills 
enter text. enter text. enter text. Team, Inc., 112 E. Second 

Street, 3rd Floor, Dixon, IL 

61021 

Click or tap here to Click or tnp here to Click or tap here to Business Employment Skills 
enter text. enter text. enter text. Team, Inc., 225 E. Backbone 

Road, Princeton, IL 61356 

Click or tap here to Click or tap here to Click or tap here to Business Employment Skills 
enter text. enter text. enter text. Team, Inc., 815 N. Orlando 

Smith Avenue, Room C328, 

Oglesby, IL 61348 

Click or tap here to Click or tap here to Click or tap here to Business Employment Skills 
enter text. enter text. enter text. Team, Inc., 2605 Woodlawn 

Road, Suite 1, Sterling, IL 

61081 

Click or tap here to Click or tap here to Click or tap here to Business Employment Skills 
enter text. enter text. enter text. Team, Inc., 810 S. 10th Street, 

Oregon, IL 61061 

Click or tap here to Click or tap here to Click or tap here to Business Employment Skills 
enter text. enter lex t. enter text. Team, Inc., 301 N. Main 

Street, Mt Carroll, IL 61053 

Illinois Department of 

Human Services, 1560 First 

Avenue, Ottawa, IL 61350 

Illinois Department of 

Human Services, 225 E. 

Backbone Road, Princeton, IL 

61356 

Illinois Department of 

Human Services, 1001 Pines 

Road, Oregon, IL 61061 

5 CEO Meeting 
December 18, 2023 



Illinois Department of 

Human Services, 905 Second 

Street, LaSalle, IL 61301 

Illinois Department of 

Human Services, 2605 

Woodlawn Road, #4, 

Sterling, IL 61081 

Illinois Valley Community 

College (Adult Education & 

Perkins), 815 N. Orlando 

Smith Avenue, Oglesby, IL 

61348 

Sauk Valley Community 

College (Adult Education & 

Perkins), 173 IL Route #2, 

Dixon, IL 61021 

Illinois Department of 

Employment Security, 406 

Avenue C, Sterling, IL 61081 

Tri-County Opportunities 

Council/Bureau County Food 

Pantry, 1019 N. Main Street, 

Princeton, IL 61356 

Tri-County Opportunities 

Council, Mel Foster Realty, 

1801 Chicago Avenue, 

Savanna, IL 61074 

Tri-County Opportunities 

Council, 208 N. 30th Road, 

LaSalle, IL 61301 

Tri-County Opportunities 

Council, A Servant's Heart, 

610 Jefferson Street, Ottawa, 

IL 61350 

Tri-County Opportunities 

Council, 111 Spring Street, 

3rd Floor, Streator, IL 61364 

Tri-County Opportunities 

Council, 306 N. 6th Street, 

Rochelle, IL 61068 

Tri-County Opportunities 

Council, 2018 4th Avenue, 

Sterling, IL 61081 

Tri-County Opportunities 

Council, 405 Emmons 

Avenue, Rock Falls, IL 61071 

6 CEO Meeting 
December 18, 2023 



Northwestern Illinois 

Community Action Agency, 

27 S. State Avenue, Suite 

201, Freeport, IL 61032 

W AIYER REQUESTS 

D Described below is a request to be waived from specific provisions of the Governor's 

Guidelines - Revision 4 or PY 2024 Supplemental Guidance, as agreed upon by all 
required partners in the local area and the local workforce board chair. 

Please describe the waiver request(s) below, including: 

o The specific requirement (including relevant citations of the Governor's Guidelines
- Revision 4 or PY 2024 Supplemental Guidance) the local area is requesting be

waived for the current program year MOU and budget negotiations, and

o Rationale for the State not holding the local area responsible for compliance with

the specific requirement as described in the Governor's Guidelines - Revisioo 4 or

PY 2024 Supplemental Guidance.

Requirement (including applicable Rationale and Description 
citation(s) to specific provisions of of Negative Consequences or Impact 

the Governor's Guidelines) in the Absence of a Waiver 

1. 

2. 

3.

7 CEO Meeting 
December 18, 2023 























































State of Illinois 
Before the County Board of Carroll County 

Resolution No._______ 

A resolution to declare a vacancy in the Carroll County Board District 1. 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
WHEREAS, John Grotto  was a duly elected Member of the Carroll County Board 
District 1 as a member of the Republican Party; and 

WHEREAS, the term to which the said John Grotto had been elected has not expired 
but the said John Grotto has resigned from the said position effective December 7, 2023; 
and 

WHEREAS, the County Board has accepted the resignation of the said John Grotto with 
regret; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF CARROLL 
COUNTY: 
A. The County Board hereby declares the position of County Board Member from

District 1, formerly held by the said John Grotto, to be vacant.

B. The County Clerk shall within 3 days of this date cause a certified copy of this
resolution to be mailed to the chairman of each established political party in the
County, in accordance with the Election Code.

C. The vacancy shall be filled by appointment of the Chairman of the Carroll
County Board within 60 days of this date, with the advice and consent of the
County Board, in accordance with law.

Passed this ____  day of January, 2024 by the County Board of Carroll County. 

______________________ 
Chairman 

State of Illinois ) 
) ss 

County of Carroll ) 
I, Amy Buss, County Clerk for Carroll County, State of Illinois, keeper of the 

records and files thereof in accordance with law, do hereby certify the foregoing 
resolution was passed by the Carroll County Board at it regular monthly meeting held 
at Mt. Carroll, Illinois and the date aforesaid in accordance with law. 

In testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and seal at my office at Mt. 
Carroll, Illinois this ____ day of January, A.D. 2024. 

[Seal] 
____________________ 
Amy Buss 
Carroll County Clerk 






















	Agenda
	December 20th Board Meeting Minutes
	December 21st Board Meeting Minutes
	Bills Paid in Vacation
	Committee on Claims
	Hwy Dept Monthly Report
	Hwy Dept Ordinances to Review
	Hwy Dept Policy for the Consultant QBS Process
	BEST Monthly Report
	Hotel-Motel Monthly Report
	LRA Monthly Report
	VAC Monthly Report
	Resolution Declaring Vacancy in County Board District 1
	Waterfowl USA Mississippi Flyway Chapter Sportsman Banquet Raffle License Application
	Waterfowl USA Mississippi Flyway Chapter Queen of Hearts Raffle License Application



